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TO SHAREHOLDERS 
 

Respected Shareholders,  

 

On my behalf and on behalf of the Board of Directors, I welcome you all to this 37th Annual General Meeting of Company.  

 

I feel honored and privileged once again to present you with the Annual Report for the financial year 2020-21. It gives me an opportunity to share my thoughts 

and the Company’s progress during the year as well as the way forward. The financial year 2020-21 also was full of challenges and crucial commitments.  

 

Discarding the global challenges, your company continued to carry on business cautiously which resulted in to turnover of Rs. 36,72,54,618. On the mark of 

report that your Company sustained its profitability due to controlling expenses and finance cost and posted a Profit After Tax of Rs. 28,73,191. 

 

It will not be out of place at this juncture to say that your Company’s ability deliver growth and sustain business gradually. The momentum is attributable to its 

ability to remain relevant to its esteemed customer’s changing choice and preference, need and extensive global presence.  

 

I would like to take this opportunity on behalf of the Board of Directors and its leadership team to thank each shareholder, Banks for their continued co-

operation, support and commitment to the Company.  

 

Success is working together and not a destination; it is with this hope and faith I look forward to your continuous confidence in your Company embarking on 

the next phase of its growth journey. 

 

With Best Wishes, 

Sincerely 

 

Sd/- 

Shiv Prasad Agarwal 

Managing Director 

mailto:shyamsaty@rediffmail.com
http://www.satyashyam.com/
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NOTICE OF 37TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT 37TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF MEMBERS OF SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED (CIN: L51102MP1984PLC002664) IS 

SCHEDULED TO BE HELD AT ON THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 30, 2021, AT 11:00 A.M. AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY SITUATED AT 110, 

SIYAGANJ, INDORE – 452007, M.P. INDIA, TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESS: - 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 

1. To receive consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021 together with the Reports of 

the Directors' and Auditors' thereon. 

 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Raj Bansal (DIN: 00545292) who retires by rotation and being eligible for re-appointment on same terms and 

condition, offers himself for re-election. 

 

Registered Office: 110, Siyaganj, Indore  – 452007, M.P. India 

 

CIN: L51102MP1984PLC002664 

E-mail: shyamsaty@rediffmail.com 

Place: Indore 

Date: September 07, 2021. 

        By Order of the Board of Directors 

 

                                      Sd/- 

                      Shiv Prasad Agarwal 

                      Managing Director 

                      DIN: 00545387 
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NOTES: 

 
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and a proxy need not be a 

member of the Company. The proxy in order to be effective must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before 

the commencement of the meeting. 

 

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital 

of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may 

appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder 

 

During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting and ending with the conclusion of the meeting, a 

member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at any time during the business hours of the Company, provided that not less than three days' 

notice in writing of the intention so to inspect is given to the Company. 

 

Corporate members intending to send their Authorised Representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of 

the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf. 

 

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members 

of the Company will be entitled to vote. 

 

The Company has appointed MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited, RTA situated at 383 Lake Garden, 1st floor, Kolkata – 700045 as Registrars and Share 

Transfer Agents for Physical Shares. Following information of RTA is as follows: 

Telephone No. 033-40724051 / 4052/4053,  

E-mail address: mcssta@rediffmail.com 

 

2. Members who hold shares in electronic form are requested to mention their DP ID and Client ID number and those who hold shares in physical form are 

requested to mention their Folio Number in the Attendance Slip for attending the Meeting to facilitate identification of membership at the AGM. 

 

mailto:shyamsaty@rediffmail.com
http://www.satyashyam.com/
mailto:mcssta@rediffmail.com
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3. Entrance Pass and Proxy Form is annexed. Members are requested to bring their duly filled in attendance slip with copy of Annual Report to the place of 

meeting. 

 

4. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities 

market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are 

maintaining their Demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the Company / RTA. 

 
5. Details under regulation 36 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in respect of  the Directors seeking re-

appointment at the Annual General Meeting, forms integral part of the notice. 

 
6. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Wednesday, 22nd September, 2021 to Thursday, 3oth 

September, 2021 (both days inclusive). 

 
7. The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the Company as on cut of date Wednesday, 22nd 

September, 2021. 

 
8. A persons, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date 

only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting as the AGM through ballot paper. 

 
9. Any persons, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company after dispatch of the notice and holding shares as of the Record 

date i.e. 22nd September, 2021, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at Company or RTA. 

 
10. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the AGM along with the Annual Report 

2020-21 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories and has been 

uploaded on the website of the Company at http://www.satyashyam.com/. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of CDSL (agency for 

providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evotingindia.com. Printed copy of the Annual Report (including the Notice) is not being sent to the 

Members in view of the (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020. 

 

mailto:shyamsaty@rediffmail.com
http://www.satyashyam.com/
http://www.satyashyam.com/
http://www.evotingindia.com/
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11. The electronic copies of all documents which are referred to in this Notice but not attached to it will be made available for inspection. For inspection, the 

Members are requested to send a request through an E-mail on shyamsaty@rediffmail.com in with Depository participant ID and Client ID or Folio 

number. 

 
12. The Members desiring any information relating to the accounts or have any questions, are requested to write to the Company on 

shyamsaty@rediffmail.com at least Ten days before the date of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) so as to enable the Management to keep the 

information ready and provide it at the AGM. 

 
13. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as 

amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2015 , the Company is pleased to provide members the facility to exercise their right 

to vote through remote e-voting in respect of the resolution proposed to be passed at the 37th Annual General Meeting (AGM) by using the electronic 

voting facility provided by Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). 

 

14. The Company shall provide facility for voting through polling paper which shall be available at the meeting and members attending the meeting who have 

not already casted their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right to vote at the meeting. 

 
15. The members who have casted their votes by remote e-voting prior to the meeting may also attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote 

again. 

 
16. The cut-off date for the purpose of Voting (including remote e-voting) is Wednesday, 22nd September, 2021 

The remote e-voting facility will be available during the following period after which the portal shall forthwith be blocked and shall not be available:- 

Commencement of remote E-Voting                         09:00 AM IST on Monday, 27th Sept., 2021 

–––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––– 

End of remote E-Voting                                                 05:00 PM IST on Wednesday, 29th Sept., 2021 

 
17. Ms. Divya Jeswani, Proprietor of M/s Jeswani & Associates., Practicing Company Secretary has been appointed as the Scrutinizer for voting and remote e-

voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 

 

mailto:shyamsaty@rediffmail.com
http://www.satyashyam.com/
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18. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by 

use of “remote e-voting” or “Ballot Paper” for all those members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-

voting facility. 

 
19. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count the votes cast at the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes 

cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than three days of 

the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer report of the total votes cast in favor or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by 

him in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forth with. 

 
20. The Result declared along with the report of the scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company and on the website of CDSL the results shall 

simultaneously be communicated to the Metropolitan Stock Exchange. 

 
21. In terms of Section 72 of the Act, nomination facility is available to individual Members holding shares in the Physical Mode. The Members, who are 

desirous of availing this facility, may kindly write to Company’s R & T Agent for nomination form by quoting their folio number. 

 
22. The Members are requested to: 

a) Intimate changes, if any, in their registered addresses immediately. 

b) Quote their ledger folio/DPID number in all their correspondence. 

c) Hand over the enclosed attendance slip, duly signed in accordance with their specimen registered with the Company for admission to the meeting 

place. 

d) Bring their Annual Report and Attendance Slips with them at the AGM venue. 

e) Send their Email address to us for prompt communication and update the same with their Depository Participants to receive softcopy of the Annual 

Report of the Company. 

 
        Shareholder instructions for E-Voting: 
 
       THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:- 
 

mailto:shyamsaty@rediffmail.com
http://www.satyashyam.com/
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i. The voting period begins on Monday, 27th September, 2021 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on Wednesday, 29th September, 2021 at 05:00 P.M. During this 

period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of 22nd  

September, 2021, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter. 

 

ii. Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting venue. 

 
iii. Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, 

in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail 

shareholders is at a negligible level. 

 
Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed entities in India. This necessitates registration on 

various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs and passwords by the shareholders. 

 
In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to enable e-voting to all the demat 

account holders, by way of a single login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account 

holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also 

enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process. 

 

iv. In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 

Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat 

mode CDSL/NSDL is given below: 

 
 
 

 

mailto:shyamsaty@rediffmail.com
http://www.satyashyam.com/
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Type of 

shareholders 

Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

Demat mode 

with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and password. Option will be 
made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login  or visit www.cdslindia.com  and click on Login icon and select New System 
Myeasi. 
 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting 
is in progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-
Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/ RTA, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 
 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration . 
 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting 
link available on www.cdslindia.com home page or click on https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The system 
will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful 
authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access 
the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

mailto:shyamsaty@rediffmail.com
http://www.satyashyam.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin
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Individual 

Shareholders 

holding 

securities in 

demat mode 

with NSDL 

1. If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by 
typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of 
e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new 
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see 
e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 
 

2. If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select 
“Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

 
3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either 

on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 

which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. 

your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding 

securities in 

demat mode) 

 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant registered with 
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting 
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting 
feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider 
website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 

 Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password 
option available at abovementioned website. 
 

mailto:shyamsaty@rediffmail.com
http://www.satyashyam.com/
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Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through Depository 
i.e. CDSL and NSDL 
 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 
contact at 022- 23058738 and 22-23058542-43. 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 
helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in  or call at toll 
free no.: 18001020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 

 
v. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for Physical shareholders and shareholders other than individual holding in Demat form. 

 
1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 

2) Click on “Shareholders” module. 

3) Now enter your User ID 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company. 

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, then your 

existing password is to be used. 

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

 For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat. 
PAN Enter your 10digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department 

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are 
requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend Bank Details OR Date 
of Birth (DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat 
account or in the company records in order to login. 

mailto:shyamsaty@rediffmail.com
http://www.satyashyam.com/
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the 
member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field. 

 
vi. After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

 
vii. Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, shareholders holding shares in demat 

form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly 
note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any othe company on which they are eligible to vote, 
provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and 
take utmost care to keep your password confidential. 
 

viii. For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice. 
 

ix. Click on the EVSN for the relevant SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED on which you choose to vote. 
 

x. On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as 
desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

 
xi. Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

 
xii. After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, 

click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 
 
xiii. Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 
xiv. You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page. 

 
xv. If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and click on Forgot Password & 

enter the details as prompted by the system. 
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xvi. Additional Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –For Remote Voting only: 
 

 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register 

themselves in the “Corporates” module. 

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The Compliance User would be able to link 

the account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 

 The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be able to 

cast their vote. 

 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in 

PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen 

signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address viz; 

shyamsaty@rediffmail.com, if they have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the 

same. 

 
23. Process for those members whose Email IDS are not registered: The Members who have not registered their E-mail addresses are requested to register 

them with the Company to receive e-communication from the Company. For registering E-mail Address, the Members are requested follow the below 

steps: 

 

A. Members holding shares in physical mode are requested to provide name, Folio Number, Mobile Number, E-mail Address, scanned copies of share 

certificate(s) (both sides), self-attested PAN and Aadhar card through E-mail on shyamsaty@rediffmail.com. 

B. Members holding shares in dematerialized mode are requested to provide name, Depository participant ID and Client ID, mobile number, e-mail 

address, scanned copies of self-attested client master or Consolidated Account statement through E-mail on shyamsaty@rediffmail.com. 

 

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an email to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022-23058738 and 022-23058542/43. 
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All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, (CDSL,) Central 

Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 

400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com  or call on 022-23058542/43. 

 

Registered Office: 110, Siyaganj, Indore  – 452007, M.P. India 

 

CIN: L51102MP1984PLC002664 

E-mail: shyamsaty@rediffmail.com 

Place: Indore 

Date: September 07, 2020. 

      By Order of the Board of Directors 

 

                                    Sd/- 

                  Shiv Prasad Agarwal 

                  Managing Director 

                  DIN: 00545387 
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THE DETAIL OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER SECRETARIAL STANDARDS - II IS GIVEN IN 

THIS NOTICE: 
 

Particulars Mr. Raj Bansal (DIN: 00545292) 

Qualification BCA 

Experience 
Mr. Raj Bansal has vast experience in Tea Industry. He has been associated with the Company since 1989. He has 

also been connected with so many companies on executive or non executive basis within Tea Industry 

Date of First Appointment on the Board 28/10/1989 

Shareholding in the Company as on 

31.03.2021 
14,880 

Shareholding in the Company as on Date 

of Approval of this Notice 
14,880 

Relationship with other Directors  / 

Managers / Other KMPs 

He is related to Mr. Shiv Prasad Agarwala, Mr. Binod Kumar Bansal, Mr. Ashok Kumar Bansal and Mr. Siddharth 

Bansal. He is also related to all promoters of the Company. 

Other Directorships 

1. Hindusthan Building Society Ltd 
2. ANK Leasing and Finance Limited 
3. Chandan Tea Industries Pvt Ltd 
4. Balason Tea Company Private Limited 
5. Bijalimoni Plantation LTD. 
6. New Tea Agro Private Limited 
7. New Tea Co LTD 
8. Cooch behar Agro-Tea Estate PRIVATE Limited. 
9. Ranirhat Tea Private Limited 
10. Magus Packagings Private Limited 
11. Micro Multicom Private Limited 
12. New Tea Marketing Private Limited 
13. Jalpaiguri Duars Tea CO LTD 
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14. CB Mercantile Private Limited 
15. Rheabari Tea Co Private Limited 
16. Bijalimoni Tea and Finance Private Limited 
17. New Tea Properties Private Limited 
18. The Bengal Rowing Club 
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ATTENDANCE SLIP OF 37th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

 

 
 
Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the venue of the meeting. 
 

Name of the Shareholder:  

Registered Address:  
 

No. of Shares Held:  
Registered Folio No./ DP ID-Client ID:  

 
I/we certify that I/ We am/are the registered Member(s)/Proxy for the registered Member(s) of the Company. 
 
I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 37th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, September 30, 2021, at 11:00 A.M. 
at the Registered Office of the Company situated at 110, Siyaganj, Indore – 452007, M.P. India. 
 
 
Signed this _________ Day of _________2021 
 
 
…………………………………………………………………………………………… 
(Member’s/ Proxy’s Name (In Block Letters)  (Members/ Proxy’s Signature) 
 
Notes: 
 
a. Shareholder / Proxy desiring to attend the meeting must bring duly filled in and signed Attendance Slip to the meeting and ha nd over at the 

entrance. 
b. Shareholder / Proxy desiring to attend the meeting should bring his / her copy of the Notice along with Annual Report for reference at the 

meeting. 
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FORM NO.  MGT - 11 PROXY FORM 

 

 

[Pursuant to section 105 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19 (3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 

Name of the member(s):  

Registered address:  

No. of Shares held:  

Folio No / DP ld & Client ld:    

Joint Holder (s):  

E-mail ld:  

 

I / We, being the member (s) of _________________________ shares of SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED, hereby appoint: 

 

1. Name: ........................................................... Address: .......................................................... 

E-mail ID: ....................................................... Signature: ........................................................ 

Or failing him / her 

 

2. Name: ........................................................... Address: .......................................................... 

E-mail ID: ....................................................... Signature: ........................................................ 

Or failing him / her 

 

3. Name: ........................................................... Address: .......................................................... 

E-mail ID: ....................................................... Signature: ........................................................ 

 

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 37th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company to be 

held on Thursday, September 30, 2021, at 11:00 A.M. at the Registered Office of the Company situated at 110, Siyaganj, Indore – 452007, M.P. India. 

mailto:shyamsaty@rediffmail.com
http://www.satyashyam.com/


 
SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED   ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 
 

 
Registered Office: 110, SIYAGANJ, INDORE – 452007, M.P. INDIA 

CIN: L51102MP1984PLC002664 
Phone: (0731) 2533410, 2533602 Fax: (0731) 4045892 

Email: shyamsaty@rediffmail.com Website: www.satyashyam.com 

 

Resolution No. Optional * 

 For Against 

Ordinary Business: 

1. To receive consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the Financial Year ended 

31st March, 2021 together with the Reports of the Directors' and Auditors' thereon. 
  

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Raj Bansal (DIN: 00545292) who retires by rotation and being eligible 

for re-appointment on same terms and condition, offers himself for re-election 
  

 

Signed this                                               Day of                   2021        

 

 

Signature of Shareholder(s)  : _______________ 

 

 

Signature of Proxy holder(s)  : _______________  

 

Notes 

 

1. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of member’s up to and not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of the 

total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company 

carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. 

2. In case the Member appointing proxy is a body corporate, the proxy form should be signed under its seal or be signed by an officer or an 

attorney duly authorized by it and an authenticated copy of such authorization should be attached to the proxy form shall not  act as proxy for 

any other person or Member. 

3. Appointing a proxy does not prevent a Member from attending the meeting in person if he/she so wishes. 

4. In case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the joint holders should be stated. 

Please affix 

Revenue 

Stamp of Rs. 

1/- 
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5. This form of Proxy, in order to be effective, should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company situated at 110, 

Siyaganj, Indore – 452007, M.P. India, not less than FORTY-EIGHT HOURS (48) before the commencement of the Meeting. 

6. All alterations made in the Form of Proxy should be initialed. 

7. Please affix appropriate Revenue Stamp before putting signature. 

8. In case of multiple proxies, proxy later in time shall be accepted. 

9. A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company. 
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ROUTE MAP 

 

LANDMARK: SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 

To 

The Members of 

SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED 

 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 37th Annual Report together with Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021. 

Further, in compliance with the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has made requisite disclosures in this report with the objective of accountability and 

transparency in its operations to make you aware about its performance and future perspective of the Company. 

 

1) FINANCIAL PART: 

 

I. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS OF THE COMPANY:                                                      (Rs. In Lakhs) 

PARTICULARS 
For the Financial Year ended 

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 

Total Income 3680.18 3103.98 

Total Expenditure 3642.15 3061.71 

Profit after Depreciation but 

Before Tax 
38.03 42.26 

Less: Current Tax 10.5 12.00 

Deferred Tax (1.20) (0.866) 

Income Tax Adjustments of 

Earlier Year 
0 0 

Profit / loss After Tax 28.73 31.13 

 

II. OPERATIONS AND PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY: 
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 During the year under review, the Total Income of the company increased to Rs. 36.80 Crores as against the income of Rs.31.03 Crores in the previous 

year. The overall performance was however satisfactory. 

 Further, there was no change in nature of the business of the Company, during the year under review. 

 

III. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS: 

 

 The Company does not have any subsidiary and Associates within the meaning of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement of Consolidated 

Financial Results is not applicable to the company. 

 

IV. DIVIDEND: 

 

With a view to conserve resources, your Directors have thought it prudent not to recommend any dividend for the Financial Year under review. 

 

V. UNPAID DIVIDEND & IEPF: 

 

The Company is not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF) and does not have unclaimed dividend which 

remains to be transferred to Investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF). 

 

VI. TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 

 

The Board of Directors has not appropriated and transferred any amount to any Reserve and has decided to retain the entire amount in profit and Loss 

account. 

 

VII. Deposits: 

 

The Company has not accepted or renewed any amount falling within the purview of provisions of Section 73 of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) read 

with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 during the year under review. Hence, the requirement for furnishing of details relating to 

deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act or the details of deposits which are not in compliance with the Chapter V of the Act is not applicable. 
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VIII. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with The Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 as 

amended from time to time (including any amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the Company has not given any 

Loans, guarantees and security covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

However, full particulars of Investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 made during the financial year under review has been 

furnished in Note No. 03 to the Audited Financial Statements provided in this Annual Report. 

 

2) REPORT ON PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES: 

  

During the year under review, your Company did not have any subsidiary, associate and joint venture company. 

 

3) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS: 

 

I) The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties: 

 

Your Company has historically adopted the practice of undertaking related party transactions only in the ordinary and normal course of business and at 

arm’s length as part of its philosophy of adhering to highest ethical standards, transparency and accountability. In line with the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, the Board has approved a policy on related party transactions. An abridged policy on related party 

transactions has been placed on the Company’s website http://www.satyashyam.com/pdf/a3f41229d2a67b8d95903acda2618287_pdf.pdf. 

 

Further, Related Party Transactions are placed on a quarterly basis before the Audit Committee and before the Board for approval. Prior omnibus 

approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions which are of a foreseeable and repetitive nature. 

 

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 in the prescribed 

Form AOC-2 is annexed hereto and marked as Annexure - I and forms part of this Report. All the transactions other than transactions mentioned in AOC -2 

is executed / undertaken by the Company at arm’s length and in ordinary course of the business. 
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II) Disclosure of Related Party Transaction with Person or Entity belonging to Promoter & Promoter Group: 

 

The Company has transaction(s) with New Tea Co LTD, an Entity belonging to Promoter or Promoter Group that holds 10% or more shareholding of the 

Company: 

 

III) Disclosure of Loans and advances in nature of Loan to Subsidiaries and Associate of the Company: 

 

During the year under review, your Company did not have any subsidiary and associate. Hence the said reporting is not applicable. 

 

4) INSURANCE: 

 

The assets of your Company are adequately insured. Your Company has also taken out suitable cover for Public Liability. 

 

5) INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 

 

 The Company has an Internal Financial Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. The scope and authority of 

the Internal Financial Control function is well defined. The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for ensuring that Internal Financial Controls 

have been laid down in the Company and that such control is adequate and operating effectively. Internal Financial Control System evaluates on a 

continuous basis, the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control mechanism with interaction of KMP and functional staff. The Audit Committee 

reviews the Internal Financial Control System in its meeting. 

 

Further, the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements as designed and implemented by the Company are adequate. The 

preparation designing and documentation of Policy on Internal Financial Control are in place which reviewed periodically and modified suitably to ensure 

controls. During the year under review, no material or serious observation has been received from the Statutory Auditors of the Company for inefficiency 

or inadequacy of such controls. 

 

6) Changes in Share Capital: 
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During the Financial Year under review, there was no change in capital structure of the company and there are no outstanding shares issued with 

differential rights, sweat equity or ESOS. 

 

7) MATTERS RELATED TO INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

 

I. Declarations by Independent Directors:  

 

All Independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149 (6) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 (1) (b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

II. Evaluation by Independent Director: 

 

In a separate meeting of Independent Directors, performance of non-independent directors, performance of the Board as a whole and performance 

of the Chairman was evaluated, taking into account the views of executive Director. 

 

III. Opinion of Board of Directors pertaining to Independent Directors of the Company: 

 

In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, Ms. Vandana Bansal, Mr. Rakesh Mahavir Mittal, and Mr. Kanhaiya Sharma, Non-Executive 

Independent directors are independent of the management and complies with criteria of Independent Director as placed under Companies Act, 

2013. 

Further, the afore-said independent director does possess integrity, expertise and also have vast experience which is necessary or suitable to be the 

Director of the Company 

 

8) MATTERS RELATING TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

 

I. Meeting of Board of Directors of the Company during the Financial Year 2020-21: 

 

The Board 6 (Six) times during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021 in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

mailto:shyamsaty@rediffmail.com
http://www.satyashyam.com/


 
SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED    ANNUAL REPORT 2020-21 
 

 
Registered Office: 110, SIYAGANJ, INDORE – 452007, M.P. INDIA 

CIN: L51102MP1984PLC002664 
Phone: (0731) 2533410, 2533602 Fax: (0731) 4045892 

Email: shyamsaty@rediffmail.com Website: www.satyashyam.com 

The intervening gap between any two Meetings was within the period prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013. Further, The Company has complied 

with the applicable Secretarial Standards in respect of all the above-Board meetings. 

 

II. Annual evaluation of Directors, Committee and Board: 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own performance, and of the directors individually, 

as well as the evaluation of all the committees i.e. Audit, Nomination and Remuneration, Stakeholders Relationship and Internal Complaint 

Committee for Prevention and Prohibition of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace. 

 

The Board adopted a formal evaluation mechanism for evaluating its performance and as well as that of its Committees and individual directors. The 

exercise was carried out by feedback survey from each director covering Board functioning such as composition of Board and its Committees, 

experience and competencies, governance issues etc. Separate Exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual directors who 

were evaluated on parameters such as attendance and contribution at the meeting etc. 

 

9) SELECTION OF NEW DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEMBERSHIP CRITERIA: 

 

 The Nomination and remuneration Committee works with the Board to determine the appropriate characteristics, skills and experience for the Board as a 

whole and its individual members with the objective of having a Board with diverse background and experience in business, government, education and 

public service. Characteristics expected of all Directors include independence, integrity, high personal and professional ethics, sound business judgment, 

ability to participate constructively in deliberations and willingness to exercise authority in a collective manner. 

 

10) FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME: 

 

 The Company has conducted the programme through its Managing Director, Whole-time Director, Company Secretary and other Senior Managerial 

Personnel to familiarize the Independent Directors with Company in following areas: - 

  

- Familiarization with the Company; 
- Independent directors’ roles, rights and responsibilities; 
- Board dynamics & functions; 
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- Nature of the Industry in which the Company operates; 
- Business Model of the Company; 
- Compliance management. 

  

 The Policy on Familiarization Programme may be accessed on the Company's website at the link: https://www.satyashyam.com. All new Independent 

Directors inducted on the Board go through a structured orientation programme. The new Independent Directors are given an orientation with regard to 

the roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, the Business models of the Company etc. 

 

 The newly appointed Independent Directors have been provided with necessary documents, reports and internal policies to familiarize them with the 

Company's policies, procedures and practices. 

 

11) CRITERIA FOR MAKING PAYMENT TO NON - EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 

 

I. Sitting Fee: 

 

Each Non-Executive Director should be paid per meeting attended as sitting fee for Board Meeting and for Committee Meeting subject to 

approval of Board and as per provision of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

II. Commission: 

 

Under the Companies Act, 2013, Section 197 allows a company to pay remuneration to its Non-Executive Directors either by way of a monthly 

payment or at a specified percentage of the net profits of the company or partly by one way and partly by the other. Further, the section also 

states that where the company has managing director or whole-time director or manager, then a maximum of 1% of its net profits can be paid as 

remuneration to its Non-Executive Director. In case there is no managing director or whole-time director or manager, then a maximum of 3% of 

net profit can be paid. Thus, the basis of payment to the Non-Executive Director is the net profit of the Company.  

 

III. Reimbursement of actual expenses incurred: 
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Non-Executive Director may also be paid / reimbursed such sums either as fixed allowance and /or actual as fair compensation for travel, boarding 

and lodging and incidental and /or actual out of pocket expenses incurred by such member for attending Board/Committee Meetings or for 

Company’s work. 

 

IV. Payment and other consideration to independent directors: 

 

An independent director shall not be entitled to any stock option and may receive remuneration only by way of fees and reimbursement of 

expenses for participation in meetings of the Board or committee thereof and profit related commission up to a certain percentage of net profits 

in such proportion, as may be permissible under the applicable law. 

 

12) APPOINTMENT, REAPPOINTMENT AND RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONS DURING THE YEAR 2020-21: 

 

I. With respect to Directors of the Company: 

 

- Appointment and Resignation: 

 

None of the directors of the Company has appointed and resigned during the Financial Year ending 31st March, 2021. 

 

                    Reappointment: 

 

During the year under review, there was no re-appointment of directors in the Company. 

 

- Retirement by Rotation: 

 

In accordance with the provisions of the Act, none of the Independent Directors is liable to retire by rotation. As per the provisions of Section 152 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 Mr. Raj Bansal retires by rotation at the ensuing 37th Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offer himself for re-

appointment on the same terms & Conditions and remuneration. 

 

II. With respect to Key Managerial Personnel of the Company: 
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- Appointment and Resignation: 

 

No Key Managerial Personnel of the Company has appointed and resigned during the Financial Year ending 31st March, 2021. 

 

13) COMMITTEES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY: 

 

Following are the Committees of Board of Directors of the Company. Composition of the following Committees are as follows: 

 

I. AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

 

The Audit Committee of Directors was constituted pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The composition of the Audit 

Committee is in conformity with the provisions of the said section. The details of Composition of audit committee are as below: 

 

Name of Member Position in Committee 

Mr. Kanhaiya Sharma Chairman 

Mr. Rakesh Mahavir Mittal Member 

Ms. Vandana Bansal Member 

 

The Committee met 4 (Four) times during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021 in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The intervening gap between any two Meetings was within the period prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013. Further, The Company has complied with 

the applicable Secretarial Standards in respect of all the above-Committee meetings. 

 

II. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:  

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors was constituted pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The 

composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is in conformity with the provisions of the said section. The details of Composition of 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as below: 
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Name of Member Position in Committee 

Mr. Kanhaiya Sharma Chairman 

Mr. Rakesh Mahavir Mittal Member 

Ms. Vandana Bansal Member 

 

The Committee met 1 (One) times during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021 in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The intervening gap between any two Meetings was within the period prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013. Further, The Company has complied with 

the applicable Secretarial Standards in respect of all the above-Committee meetings. 

 

The salient features of the Remuneration Policy are available on Company’s website and can be accessed in the link provided herein below: 

http://www.satyashyam.com/ 

 

III. STAKEHOLDERSRELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

 

The Stakeholder Relationship Committee of Directors was constituted pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The 

composition of the Stakeholder Relationship Committee is in conformity with the provisions of the said section. The details of Composition of 

Stakeholders Relationship Committee are as below: 

 

Name of Member Position in Committee 

Mr. Kanhaiya Sharma Chairman 

Mr. Rakesh Mahavir Mittal Member 

Ms. Vandana Bansal Member 

 

The Committee met 1 (One) times during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021 in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 The intervening gap between any two Meetings was within the period prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013. Further, The Company has complied with 

the applicable Secretarial Standards in respect of all the above-Committee meetings 
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IV. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE: 

 

Your company is not required to provide statement on Corporate Social Responsibility as per Section 134 (3) of the companies Act, 2013 as your company 

do not fall under the criteria provided under section 135 (1) of Companies Act, 2013, therefore no such committee was constituted. 

 

V. INTERNAL COMPLAIN COMMITTEE FOR PREVENTION AND PROHIBITION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMAN AT WORKPLACE: 

 

 The Company has in place an Anti-harassment policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Any complaint/ grievances from women employees are reported to Chairman. All employees (Permanent, 

contractual & temporary) are covered under the policy. There were no complaints received from any employee during the Financial Year 2020-21 and no 

complaint is outstanding as on 31st March, 2021. 

 

The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at 

Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

 

14) VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER AND RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY: 

 

 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 

2014, the Company already has in place “Vigil Mechanism Policy” (Whistle Blower Policy) for Directors and employees of the Company to provide a 

mechanism which ensures adequate safeguards to employees and Directors from unethical behaviour, actual or suspected, fraud or violation of 

Company's code of conduct or ethics policy etc. The said policy is also hosted on the website of the Company at 

http://www.satyashyam.com/pdf/c2a1eeeb9a51c31550df97a5407e5282_pdf.pdf. 

 

The employees of the Company have the right/option to report their concern/grievance to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Company is 

committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct of business operations. The Company also adopted Risk Assessment 

Procedure. 
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15) RISK MANAGEMENT: 

 

 The Company has in place a risk management framework which identifies and evaluates business risks and opportunities. The Company recognizes that 

these risks need to be managed and mitigated to protect the interest of the shareholders and stakeholders to achieve business objectives and enable 

sustainable growth. The risk management framework is aimed at effectively mitigating the Company's various business and operational risks, through 

strategic actions. Risk management is embedded in our critical business activities, functions and processes. The risks are reviewed for the change in the 

nature and extent of the major risks identified since the last assessment. It also provides control measures for risk and future action plans. The Company 

has also framed a policy on Risk Management and the said policy has been hosted on the company's website https://www.satyashyam.com/ 

 

16) AUDITORS & REPORTS: 

 

I. Statutory Auditors of the Company and their observations on accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2021: 

 

At the 33rdAnnual General Meeting held on 25th September, 2017, M/s. SAP Jain & Associates, Chartered Accountants, FR. No 019356C and M. No 420386 

was appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company for 2018-19 and to hold office from the conclusion of that 33rd Annual General Meeting till the 

conclusion of 38th Annual General Meeting to be held in Year 2022-23 at remuneration to be fixed by Board of Directors of the Company. The Company 

has received consent from Statutory Auditor and confirmation to the effect that they have not been disqualified to be appointed as Statutory Auditors 

of the Company in terms of provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and rules framed there under. 

 

Further, there no observations / qualifications / disclaimers made by the M/s. SAP Jain & Associates, in their report for the Financial Year ended 31st 

March 2021. Further, the Notes to the Accounts referred to in Auditors Report are self-explanatory and does not call for any comment. 

 

II. Cost Auditors of the Company: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended from 

time to time, the Company is not required to maintain Cost Records under said Rules. Since, the Company is not required to maintain cost records; the 

question of audit of such records does not arise. 
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III. Secretarial Auditors of the Company: 

 

Provisions of Section 204 read with Section 134 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, mandates to obtain Secretarial Audit Report from Practicing Company 

Secretary. M/s Rakesh Saha & Co., Company Secretaries had been appointed to issue Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2020-21. 

 

Secretarial Audit Report issued by M/s Rakesh Saha  & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries in Form MR-3 for the Financial Year 2020-21 is hereto marked 

and annexed as Annexure – II with this report and is forming part of the Board's Report. The said report does not contain any observation or 

qualification requiring explanation or comments from the Board under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

IV. Internal Auditor of the Company: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended from 

time to time, M/s. Pallavi Jain & Co. has been appointed by the Board of Directors as Internal Auditor of the Company for the Financial Year 2020-21. 

 

17) REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY STATUTORY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143 (12): 

 

There were no incidences of reporting of frauds by Statutory Auditors of the Company under Section 143 (12) of the Act read with Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014. 

 

18) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 

 

The nature of the activities of the Company is such that the disclosure in respect of Conservation of energy and Technology Absorption pursuant to Rule 8 

of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not applicable and the Company did not have any foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the financial year 

under review. 

 

19) EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN: 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 (3) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013, Copy of the Annual Return for the financial year ended 31st March 2021 made 

under the provisions of Section 92(3) of the Act is attached as Annexure–III. 
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The extract of Annual Return shall also be placed on the website of the Company at: http://www.satyashyam.com/ 

  

20) PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES: 

 

 Details as required under Section 197 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is hereto 

marked and annexed as Annexure – IV with this report and is forming part of the Board's Report.  

 The Company's remuneration policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees represents the overarching approach of the Company 

and is directed towards rewarding performance based on review of achievements periodically. 

 

21) MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

 Management Discussion and Analysis Report, in terms of Regulation 34 (2) (e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (listing obligations and disclosure 

requirements) regulations, 2015 is hereto marked and annexed as Annexure – V with this report and is forming part of the Board's Report.  

 

22) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

 

 As per Regulation 15 (2) (a) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2015, the compliance 

with the Corporate Governance provisions as specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses(b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C , D and 

E of Schedule V are not applicable to the Company because the post issue share capital of the Company is less than Rs. 10 Crore and net worth of the 

Company is less than Rs. 25 Crore. 

 

23) MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF THE REPORT: 

 

 There have been no material changes and commitments which can affect the Financial Position of the Company occurred between the end of the 

Financial Year of the Company and date of this report. 
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24) OTHER DISCLOSURE: 

 

I) Listing of shares of the Company: 

 

Originally, the company was mainly listed at MP Stock Exchange, Indore. Due to closure of that stock exchange, as per SEBI guidelines, the Company 

opted to get listed at Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited. Accordingly, the Company got listed on 02ND May, 2019 at Metropolitan Stock 

Exchange of India Limited. 

 

Except above, during the year under review, no order was passed by any Regulator(S), Court(S) Tribunal(S) that could affect the going concern Status 

of the Company and the Company is operating in an efficient manner There were no significant / material orders passed by any regulator or court or 

tribunal which would impact the going concern status of the company and its future operations. 

 

II) DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

 

In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to the Audited Financial Statements of the company for the year ended 31st March, 

2021 the Board of Directors hereby confirms that  

 

(a) That in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31st March,2021 the applicable accounting standards have been 

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any; 

 

(b) That such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the Financial Statements have been selected and applied consistently and judgment 

and estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 

31stMarch, 2021 and of the profit of the Company for the year ended on that date; 

 

(c) That proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 

Companies Act,2013 for safe guarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 

(d) That the Audited Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis; 
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(e) Those proper Internal Financial Controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate and were operating effectively; 

 

(f) Those systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws were in place and were adequate and operating effectively. 

 

III) Issue of Sweat Equity Shares; 

 

The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and hence no information as per provisions of Section 54(1) (d) of 

the Act read with Rule 8 (13) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 

 

IV) Employee Stock Option Plan; 

 

The Company has not issued any equity shares under Employees Stock Option Scheme during the year under review and hence no information as per 

provisions of Section 62(1) (b) of the Act read with Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 

 

V) Issue of Shares with Differential Voting Rights; 

 

The Company has not issued any shares with differential rights and hence no information as per provisions of Section 43(a)(ii) of the Act read with 

Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished. 

 

VI) Disclosure Under Section 67 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013; 

 

During the year under review, no employees has exercised directly any voting rights under a scheme pursuant to Section 67 (3) of the Act read with 

Rule 16 (4) of Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014. The Company has not floated any scheme in which the Company has given loan 

to person in employment with a view to enabling them to purchase or subscribe for fully paid up shares of the Company. 
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25) CAUTIONARY STATEMENT: 

 

Statement in the Board's Report and the Management Discussion & Analysis describing the company's objectives, expectations or forecasts may be 

forward looking within the meaning of applicable Securities Laws and Regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed in the 

statement. 

 

26) ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS AND APPRECIATION: 

 

Your Directors would like to express their appreciation for the assistance and cooperation received from the Bankers, Central and State Government 

Departments, customers, vendors, and other business partners. The Directors also wish to place on record their appreciation to all the employees of the 

Company for their cooperation and continued contribution to the Company. Last but not least the Directors place on record their gratitude to the 

Investors, Clients and Shareholders of the Company for their support and trust reposed. 

 

Place : Indore                                   For & on behalf of Board of Directors of 

Date : 07.09.2021                                   SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED 

 

 

                            SD/-                         SD/- 

                                 SHIV PRASAD AGARWAL  RAJ BANSAL 

                  MANAGING DIRECTOR    DIRECTOR 

                  DIN: 00545387     DIN: 00545292 
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ANNEXURESTOTHEBOARD'SREPORT 

ANNEXURE - I 

FORM AOC-2 

(PURSUANT TO CLAUSE (H) OF SUB-SECTION (3) OF SECTION 134 OF THE ACT AND RULE 8(2) OF THE 

COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014) 
 

 

Particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub­section (1) of section 188 of the 

Companies Act,2013. 

 

1   Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis None 

2   Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis As detailed below 

 

Material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis in the ordinary course of business:  

Name of t h e Related Party and Nature     

of Relationship 

Nature of contracts / 

arrangement / 

transactions 

Duration 

of the 

contracts / 

arrangem

ents / 

transactio

ns 

Salient terms of 

the contracts or 

arrangements or 

transactions 

including the 

value, if any 

Date(s) of 

approval 

by the 

Board, if 

any 

Date(s) of 

approval 

by the 

Members, 

if any 

Amount paid 

and Amount 

outstanding 
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Chandanmall Binod Kumar (Indore) 

(Firm in which key managerial personnel 

& their relatives exercise significant 

influence) 

 

 

Transactions relating to 

the Sale of Goods 
Recurring Rs. 2378731 29.07.2021 NA 

Paid :  

Rs. 2378731 

 

Outstanding : 

Nil 

North Dinajpur Tea Agro Private Limited 

(Associates in which key managerial 

personnel & their relatives exercise 

significant influence) 

Transactions relating to 

the Purchases of Goods 
Recurring Rs. 77738768.00 29.07.2021 NA 

 Paid :  

Rs. 77526531 

 

Outstanding : 

212237 

New Tea Marketing Private Limited 

(Associates in which key managerial 

personnel & their relatives exercise 

significant influence) 

Transactions relating to 

the Sale of Goods 

 

Recurring 
Rs. 

369098368.00 
29.07.2021 N.A. 

Paid : 

Rs. 303672590 

 

Outstanding: 

Rs. 66064550 

Senchal Agro Private Ltd. 

(Associates in which key managerial 

personnel & their relatives exercise 

significant influence) 

Transactions relating to 

the Purchases of Goods 
Recurring Rs. 8451470 29.07.2021 NA 

Paid : 

Rs. 8451470 

 

Outstanding: 

Nil 
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Shyam Tea Company 

(Firm in which key managerial personnel 

& their relatives exercise significant 

influence) 

Transactions relating to 

the Sale of Goods 
Recurring Rs. 2074581 29.07.2021 NA 

Paid : 

Nil 

 

Outstanding: 

Rs. 3435840 

 

Place : Indore    For & on behalf of Board of Directors of 

Date : 07.09.2021    SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED 

 

 

     SD/-           SD/- 

          SHIV PRASAD AGARWAL  RAJ BANSAL 

         MANAGING DIRECTOR  DIRECTOR 

         DIN: 00545387   DIN: 00545292 
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SSAATTYYAA  SSHHYYAAMM  TTRRAADDIINNGG  LLIIMMIITTEEDD  
CIN:  L51102MP1984PLC002664  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    SSeeccrreettaarriiaall  AAuuddiitt  RReeppoorrtt  
FFoorr  tthhee  ffiinnaanncciiaall  yyeeaarr  eennddeedd  oonn  3311sstt  MMaarrcchh  22002211  

 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule no.9 of the Companies 
Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
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Rakesh Saha & Co. 
         Company Secretaries       Rakesh Saha 

                       B.Com, ACS 
Office: 224, Chetak Chember, 13-14, R.N.T. Marg, 
Indore-452001 {M.P.} 
Ph. No. 0731-4064602, Mob. 07566666084, E-Mail: rakeshsaha22@gmail.com 
                     

 
Form No. MR-3 

 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 

31st March, 2021 
 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule no.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To, 
The Members, 
Satya Shyam Trading Limited 
CIN- L51102MP1984PLC002664 
110-Siyajigunj, Indore, 
(M.P.) - 452007. 
 
Dear Sir /Madam, 
 
I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s SATYA SHYAM 
TRADING LIMITED (hereinafter called the Company) having CIN- 
L51102MP1984PLC002664 listed with Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India 
Limited. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable 
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing 
our opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information 
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during 
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company 
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2021, 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 
 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by M/s SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED for the financial 
year ended on 31st March, 2021 according to the provisions of: 
 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;  

ii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed 
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thereunder;  

iii. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings [Applicable only to extent of 
foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment] 

iv. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-  

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of 
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;  

        (b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider 
Trading)     Regulations, 2015;  

(c ) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; [Not applicable as the Company 
has not issued any further share capital during the period under the review] 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee 
Benefits) Regulation 2014 ; 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt 
Securities) Regulations, 2008; [Not applicable as the Company has not issued 
any further share capital during the period under the review] 

        (f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and 
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and 
dealing with client; [Not applicable as the Company is not registered as 
registrar to issue and share Transfer agent during the financial year under the 
review] 

   (g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)   
Regulations, 2009; [Not applicable as there was not reportable event during 
the period under the review] 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)       
Regulations,    1998; [Not applicable as there was not reportable event during 
the period under the review]   

 

We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for 
systems and mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other 
applicable Acts, Laws and Regulations to the Company.  

The Company is having business of Trading of Tea, Coffee and other related products 
therefore; as such no specific law relating to its business activities are 
applicable to the Company. 

The laws as are applicable specifically to the Company are as under:  

a) The Payment Of Wages Act, 1936 

b) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 

c) The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948 

d) The Employee Provident Fund And Miscellaneous Provision Act, 1952 
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e) The Payment Of Bonus Act, 1965 

f) The Payment Of Gratuity Act, 1972 

g) Contract Labour (Regulation And Abolition) Act, 1970 

h) The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946 

i) The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 

j) The Child Labour Prohibition and Regulation Act, 1986 

k) The Employees Compensation Act, 1923 

l) The Apprentices Act, 1961 

m) Equal Remuneration Act, 1976 

n) The Employment Exchange (Compulsory Notifications of Vacancies) Act, 
1956 

o) Workmen compensation Act 1923 

 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:  
 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013; and  
 
(ii) The SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time. During 
the financial year under report, the Company has complied with the provisions 
of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above 
except the following: -  
 
A) Some forms were filed by the Company after the prescribed time along with 
the adequate additional filing fee and this has reported as compliance by 
reference of payment of additional fees;  

  
We further report that the Board of directors of the Company is duly constituted with 
proper balance of Executive Directors, Non Executive Directors and Independent 
Directors.  
 
Adequate notice was given to all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings and 
agenda were also sent at least seven days in advance and shorter notice consent was 
taken where required, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting. All decisions at Board Meetings and 
Committee Meetings are carried out with requisite majority as recorded in the 
minutes of the meetings of the Board of directors and Committee of the Board, as the 
case may be.  
 
Based on the records and process explained to us for compliances under the 
provisions of other specific Acts applicable to the Company, we further report that 
there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the 
size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with 
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
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We further report that the compliance by the Company for the applicable taxation 
Laws like Direct Taxes, Indirect Taxes and the compliance of the IND-AS, disclosure of 
the financial results under Regulation 33 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and 
the annual financial statements along with notes attached therewith have not been 
reviewed by us, since the same have been subject to the statutory financial auditor or 
by other designated professionals 
 

 
 
 
 

Signature Sd/- 
Place: Indore     
Date:  03.09.2021   Name of the Company Secretary: Rakesh Saha 

Name of the Firm: Rakesh Saha & Company 
M. No. 34681 
C.P. No. 14701 
UDIN: A034681C000890822  

      



 6

 
 

Annexure - II to the Secretarial Audit Report 
 
To, 
The Members, 
Satya Shyam Trading Limited 
CIN- L51102MP1984PLC002664 
110-Siyajigunj, Indore, 
MP- 452007. 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of 
SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 
2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. 
The verification was done on test check basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected 
in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices that we followed 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of treatment of various 
tax liabilities and payment thereof, compliance of the applicable accounting 
standards, financial records and Books of Accounts of the company as the same is 
subject to the statutory audit being performed by the independent auditors. 
 
4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 
5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was 
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.  
 
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company. 
 
7. We do not take any responsibility for any person if taking any commercial, financial 
or investment decision based on our secretarial audit report as aforesaid and they 
needs to take independent advise or decision as per their own satisfaction.  
 

 
Signature  Sd/- 

Place: Indore     
Date:  03.09.2021   Name of the Company Secretary: Rakesh Saha 

Name of the Firm: Rakesh Saha & Company 
M. No. 34681 
C.P. No. 14701 
UDIN: A034681C000890822    
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ANNEXURES TO THE BOARD'S REPORT 

ANNEXURE - III 

FORM NO. MGT-9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

AS ON FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2021 

[PURSUANT TO SECTION 92(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND RULE 12(1) OF THE COMPANIES (MANAGEMENT 

AND ADMINISTRATION) RULES, 2014] 

 
I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 
 

CIN : L51102MP1984PLC002664 

Registration Date : 05-12-1984 

Name of the Company : Satya Shyam Trading Limited 
Category / Sub-Category of the Company : Company limited by Shares 

Non-Govt. Company 

Address of the Registered office and contact details : 110, Siyaganj, Indore - 452007 (M.P.) 
Telephone  : 0731-2533410 
Email    : shyamsaty@rediffmail.com 
Website   : https://satyashyam.com 

Whether listed company : Yes 

Name, Address and Contact of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if 
any: 

: MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited 
Address   : 383 Lake Garden, 1st floor, Kolkata – 700045 
Phone No  : 033-40724051 / 4052/4053, 
Email   : mcssta@rediffmail.com 
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II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 
 
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company 

  

Sr. No. Name and Description of main products/services NIC Code of the Product/service % to total turnover of the Company 

1.  Whole sale of Tea 46306 99.85 % 

 
III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: Not Applicable 
 
IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity): 
 

i. Category-wise Share Holding: 
 

Category of 
Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year 

% Change during 
the year De-mat Physical Total 

% of 
Total 

Shares 
De-mat Physical Total 

% of Total 
Shares 

A. Promoters          

(1) Indian          

a)Individual/HU
F 

289312 - 289312 9.07 % 289312 - 289312 9.07 % 0.00 

b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - - 

c) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - - 

d) Bodies Corp. 968928 - 968928 30.39 968928 - 968928 30.39 0.00 

e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 

f) Any other - - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total(A)(1): 1258240 - 1258240 39.47 1258240 - 1258240 39.47 0.00 

(2) Foreign - - - - - - - - - 

a) NRIs - 
Individuals 

- - - - - - - - - 

b) Other – - - - - - - - - - 
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Individuals 
c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - - 

d) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 

e) Any other - - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total (A)(2): - - - - - - - - - 

Total 
shareholding 
of Promoter (A) 
= 
(A)(1)+(A)(2) 

1258240 - 1258240 39.47 1258240 - 1258240 39.47 0.00 

B. Public 
Shareholding 

         

(1) Institutions - - - - - - - - - 

a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - - 

b) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - - 

c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - - 

d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - - 
e) Venture 
Capital Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

f) Insurance 
Companies 

- - - - - - - - - 

g) Foreign 
Portfolio 
Investor 

- - - - - - - - - 

h) Foreign 
Venture Capital 
Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

i) Others 
(specify) 

- - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total (B)(1): - - - - - - - - - 
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(2) Non-
Institutions 

         

a) Bodies Corp.          

i) Indian - - - - - - - - - 

ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - - 

b) Individuals          
i) Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital up 
to Rs. 2 lakh 

30 353346 353376 11.08 % 30 30 353346 11.08 % 0.00 

ii) Individual 
shareholders 
holding nominal 
share capital in 
excess of Rs. 2 
lakh 

970600 500920 1471520 46.15 % 970600 500920 1471520 46.15 % 0.00 

NBFC registered 
with RBI 

- - - - - - - - - 

c) Others 
(specify) 

- - - - - - - - - 

Relatives of 
Independent 
Director 

- - - - - - - - - 

Hindu 
Undivided 
Family 

- - - - - - - - - 

Non-Resident 
Indians (Re pat) 

- - - - - - - - - 
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Non-Resident 
Indians (Non-Re 
pat) 

- - - - - - - - - 

Clearing 
Members 

- - - - - - - - - 

Independent 
Director 

- - - - - - - - - 

Bodies 
Corporate 

- 1,04,960 1,04,960 3.29 - 1,04,960 1,04,960 3.29 0.00 

Sub-total(B)(2): 970630 9,59,226 19,29,856 60.53 970630 9,59,226 19,29,856 60.53 0.00 

Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B) (1) + (B) 
(2) 

970630 9,59,226 19,29,856 60.53 970630 9,59,226 19,29,856 60.53 0.00 

C. Shares held 
by 
Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs 

- - - - - - - - - 

Grand Total 
(A+B+C) 

22,28,870 9,59,226 31,88,096 100 % 22,28,870 9,59,226 31,88,096 100 % 0.00 

 
ii. SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS: 

 

Sr. No. Shareholder’s Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the Year 

% change in share 
Holding during 

the year No. of Shares 
% of total 

Shares of the 
Company 

% of Shares 
Pledged/ 

encumbered 
to total shares 

No. of Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 

the 
Company 

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbere
d to total 

shares 
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1.  ROSHANLAL AGARWALA 88000 2.76 0.00 88000 2.76 0.00 0.00 

2.  AKHIL BANSAL 69440 2.18 0.00 69440 2.18 0.00 0.00 

3.  ROHIT BANSAL 51200 1.61 0.00 51200 1.61 0.00 0.00 

4.  SIDDHARTH BANSAL 17600 0.55 0.00 17600 0.55 0.00 0.00 

5.  RAJ BANSAL 14880 0.47 0.00 14880 0.47 0.00 0.00 

6.  SHARDA DEVI AGARWALA 14400 0.45 0.00 14400 0.45 0.00 0.00 

7.  SHIV PRASAD AGARWALA 10112 0.32 0.00 10112 0.32 0.00 0.00 

8.  SAROJ DEVI BANSAL 9600 0.30 0.00 9600 0.30 0.00 0.00 

9.  DEEPAK BANSAL 5280 0.17 0.00 5280 0.17 0.00 0.00 

10.  ASHOK KUMAR BANSAL 4800 0.15 0.00 4800 0.15 0.00 0.00 

11.  
ROSHANLAL AGARWALA AND 
SONS HUF 

3200 0.10 0.00 3200 0.10 0.00 0.00 

12.  SANTOSH DEVI AGARWAL 640 0.02 0.00 640 0.02 0.00 0.00 

13.  BINOD KUMAR BANSAL 160 0.01 0.00 160 0.01 0.00 0.00 
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14.  NEW TEA CO LTD 435440 13.66 0.00 435440 13.66 0.00 0.00 

15.  EAGLE VANIJYA PVT LTD 192000 6.02 0.00 192000 6.02 0.00 0.00 

16.  
HINDUSTHAN BUILDING SOCIETY 
LTD 

96000 3.01 0.00 96000 3.01 0.00 0.00 

17.  ATAL TEA CO. (1943) LTD 66000 2.07 0.00 66000 2.07 0.00 0.00 

18.  ANK LEASING AND FINANCE LTD 65408 2.05 0.00 65408 2.05 0.00 0.00 

19.  
RHEABARI TEA COMPANY 
PRIVATE LIMITED 

58080 1.82 0.00 58080 1.82 0.00 0.00 

20.  
BIJALIMONI TEA AND FINANCE 
PRIVATE LIMITED 

48000 1.51 0.00 48000 1.51 0.00 0.00 

21.  
CANDOUR ENGINEERING 
PRIVATE LIMITED 

4800 0.15 0.00 4800 0.15 0.00 0.00 

22.  
MULTIPACK PLASTICS PRIVATE 
LIMITED 

3200 0.10 0.00 3200 0.10 0.00 0.00 

 
 
TOTAL 

1258240 39.47 0.00 1258240 39.47 0.00 0.00 

 
iii. CHANGE IN PROMOTERS’ SHAREHOLDING: Not Applicable since there in no change 

 
iv. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS (OTHER THAN DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND HOLDERS OF GDRS AND ADRS): 

 

Sr. No. Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the Year % change in share 
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No. of Shares 
% of total 
Shares of the 
Company 

% of Shares 
Pledged/ 
encumbered 
to total shares 

No. of Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 
the 
Company 

% of Shares 
Pledged / 
encumbere
d to total 
shares 

Holding during 
the year 

1.  Gayatri devi Agarwal 156000 7.83 0.00 156000 7.83 0.00 0.00 

2.  Divya Agarwal 136900 6.87 0.00 136900 6.87 0.00 0.00 

3.  Bhagwati Prasad Agarwal 130600 6.55 0.00 130600 6.55 0.00 0.00 

4.  Manju Dev Agarwal 125000 6.27 0.00 125000 6.27 0.00 0.00 

5.  Rajni Agarwal 55000 2.76 0.00 55000 2.76 0.00 0.00 

6.  Subhash Chandra Agarwal 50000 2.51 0.00 50000 2.51 0.00 0.00 

7.  Mohanlal Dhelia 28000 1.40 0.00 28000 1.40 0.00 0.00 

8.  Bhama Sharma 27000 1.35 0.00 27000 1.35 0.00 0.00 

9.  Mangla Prasad Mishra 27000 1.35 0.00 27000 1.35 0.00 0.00 

10.  Deo Ratan Mundra 22000 1.10 0.00 22000 1.10 0.00 0.00 

 TOTAL 7,57,500 37.99 0.00 7,57,500 37.99 0.00 0.00 
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v. SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

 

Sr. No. 
 

For each of the Directors and KMP 

Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding during the year 

No. of shares 
% of total shares of the 

Company 
No. of shares 

% of total shares 
of 

the Company 

1.                                                                                                           SHIV PRASAD AGARWALA 

 At the beginning of the year 10112 0.32 0 0.00 

 At the End of the year  10112 0.32 10112 0.32 

2.                                                                                                             BINOD KUMAR BANSAL 

 At the beginning of the year 160 0.01 0 0.00 

 At the End of the year  160 0.01 160 0.01 

3.                                                                                                                SIDDHARTH BANSAL 

 
At the beginning of the year 
 

17600 0.55 0 0.00 

 At the End of the year  17600 0.55 17600 0.55 

4.  RAJ BANSAL 

 At the beginning of the year 14880 0.47 0 0.00 

 At the End of the year 14880 0.47 14880 0.47 

5.      ASHOK KUMAR BANSAL 

 At the beginning of the year 4800 0.15 0 0.00 

 At the End of the year 4800 0.15 4800 0.15 
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vi. INDEBTEDNESS: 
 

 
Secured Loan 
excluding deposits 

Unsecured Loans 
Inter Corporate 
Deposits 

Total Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year 
Principal amount 
 Interest due but not paid 
Interest accrued but not due 

0 0 
25695126 

- 

25695126 
- 
- 

Total (i + ii + iii) 0 0 25695126 
 

25695126 
 

Changes in Indebtedness during the financial Year Addition 
(Reduction) 

0 0 98921 98921 

Net Change 0 0 98921 98921 

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year 
i)  Principal amount 
ii) Interest due but not paid 
iii)Interest accrued but not due 

0 0 
25794047 

- 

25794047 
- 
- 

Total (i + ii + iii) 0 0 25794047 
 

25794047 
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vii. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

 

A. REMUNERATION TO MANAGING DIRECTOR / WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR/ MANAGER: 

 

Sr. No Particulars of Remuneration 

Name of Managing Director 

Total 
Mr. Shiv Prasad 
Agarwal (MD) 

Mr. Ashok Kumar 
Bansal (WTD) 

1.  

Gross salary 
a. Salary as per provisions contained in section 17 (1) of the Income-tax 

Act,1961 
b. Value of perquisites u/s 17 (2) Income-tax Act,1961 
c. Profits in lieu of salary under section 17 (3) Income-tax Act,1961 

1800000 1740000 3540000 

2.  Stock Option 0 0  

3.  Sweat Equity 0 0  

 Commission    

4.  - as % of profit 0 0  

 - others, specify - (Guarantee Commission) 0 0  

5.  Others i.e. LIC Super Annuation 270000 261000 531000 

 Total(A) 2070000 2001000 4071000 

 

B. REMUNERATION TO OTHER DIRECTORS:  

 

Sr. No Particulars of Remuneration 
Name of Director Total 
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Mr. Kanhaiya Sharma 

1.  

Gross salary 
a. Salary as per provisions contained in section 17 (1) of the Income-tax Act,1961 
b. Value of perquisites u/s 17 (2) Income-tax Act,1961 
c. Profits in lieu of salary under section 17 (3) Income-tax Act,1961 

0 0 

2.  Stock Option 0 0 

3.  Sweat Equity 0 0 

4.  Commission as % of profit 0 0 

5.  Sitting Fees for Board Meeting 341250 341250 

6.  Others i.e. LIC Super Annuation 0 0 

 Total (A) 341250 341250 

 
C. REMUNERATION TO KMP OTHER THAN MD / MANAGER / WTD: 
 

Sr. No. Particulars of Remuneration 

Key Managerial Personnel 

CEO 
Company 

Secretary 
CFO Total 

 
Ms. Vrishti 

Kaushik 
Mr Vinod Daga  

1 Gross salary  1,80,000 6,61,500 8,41,500 

 
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 

1961 
- - - - 

 
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 

17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 
- - -  

 (c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17 (3) Income tax Act, 1961 - - -  
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2 Stock Option - - -  

3 Sweat Equity - -   

4 Commission  as % of profit or other (Specify) - - -  

5 

Others, please 

Specify 
- - -  

 Total 
- 1,80,000 6,61,500 8,41,500 

 
viii. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: Nil 

  
Place : Indore                                   For & on behalf of Board of Directors of 

Date : 07.09.2021                                   SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED 

 

 

                            SD/-            SD/- 

                         SHIV PRASAD AGARWAL  RAJ BANSAL 

          MANAGING DIRECTOR   DIRECTOR 

          DIN: 00545387    DIN: 00545292 
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ANNEXURES TO THE BOARD'S REPORT 

ANNEXURE - IV 

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5 OF COMPANIES 

(APPOINTMENT & REMUNERATION) RULES, 2014 
 

 

A. The particulars of employees, who were in receipt of remuneration of not less than Rs. 1.02 Cr per annum if employed throughout the Financial Year or 

Rs. 8.50 Lakhs per month if employed for a part of the Financial Year :Not Applicable 

 

B. Disclosure under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013read with Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment & Remuneration) Rules, 2014: 

 

i. The percentage increase in remuneration of the Executive Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during the financial year 2020-21, 

the ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the financial year and the comparison 

of remuneration of each Key Managerial personnel (KMP) against the performance of the Company is as under: 

 

Sr. No. Name Designation 

Remuneration 

for F.Y. 2020 -21 

(in Rs) 

 

% increase in the 

remuneration for 

financial year 

2020 -21 

Ratio of 
remuneration of 

Director to median 
remuneration of 

employees 

Comparison of the 

remuneration 

against the 

performance of the 

company 

1. Shiv Prasad Agarwal Managing Director 2070000 0% 32.37X Profit After Tax 

decreased 7.69 % in 

comparison with FY 

2019-20 
2. Ashok Kumar Bansal Whole Time Director 2001000 0% 31.29X 
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3. Mr. Vinod Kumar Daga Chief Financial Officer  6,61,500 90.70% 10.34X 

4. CS Vrishti Kaushik Company Secretary 1,80,000 11.00% 2.81X 

5. Mr. Kanhaiya Sharma Independent Director 3,41,250 10.52% 5.34X  

 

ii. The median remuneration of employees during the financial year was Rs.63941/- 

 

iii. There were 9 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31stMarch, 2021. 

 

iv. In the financial year there was decrease of 94.66% in the median remuneration. 

 

v. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration is paid as per the remuneration policy of the company. 

 

Place : Indore   For & on behalf of Board of Directors of 

Date : 07.09.2021   SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED 

 

 

     SD/-             SD/- 

     SHIV PRASAD AGARWAL                RAJ  BANSAL 

     MANAGING DIRECTOR                     DIRECTOR 

     DIN: 00545387                                     DIN:  00545292 
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ANNEXURES TO THE BOARD'S REPORT 

ANNEXURE – V 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 
 

 
Industry Structure and Development: 
 
The Company being a wholesaler of premium quality teas has been able to cater to the needs of its 
valued customers. With shortage in supply of quality areas in the market, the Company is earning high 
prices for its teas and is expected to perform satisfactorily. 
 
Tea being a common man’s drink is consumed widely throughout the country. The Global Tea 
Production (Excluding China) in the financial year 2020-21 was at par with 2019-20. All India Tea 
Production during 2020-21 is 1283.03 million kgs compared to 1360.81 million kgs in the previous 
financial year. The Indian tea market is estimated to be Rs. 26,000 Crores, with unbranded being 30-
35% of the overall market (by value). Tea is the favourite Indian beverage and we continue to see 
growth across all tiers through up gradation from loose to economy branded tea and movement up 
the chain to premium and super premium teas. 
 
Health & wellness continues to be a strong trend and consumers are also looking at functional 
benefits from their cup of chai (such as Ayurveda Tea and Tulsi Tea). The Tea manufactured in the 
country is almost sufficient to meet the internal domestic demands. The weather is of prime 
importance for the Tea manufacturing industry for achieving/ maintaining the production target for 
the industry. Due to the vagaries of the weather the production of tea fluctuates within a given range. 
However, in spite of this scenario the outlook for the tea industry appears to be good, due to its 
increasing demand and consumption. 
 
Opportunities & Threats: 
 
The continuous promotional efforts and better marketing and brand building initiatives taken jointly 
by the Government/Tea Board including TRUSTEA program are likely to benefit the industry in the long 
term. India is the world’s second largest tea consumer and the per capita consumption of teas in India 
is increasing every year. The customers nowadays prefer quality tea and willing to pay more for quality 
tea. Increasing consumer awareness for quality, branding and promotion will have positive impact on 
prices in domestic market. Tea continues to enjoy the status of being the most popular beverage in 
the World. 
 
The Tea Industry is largely dependent on the vagaries of nature. The Industry is highly labour intensive 
and is subject to stringent labour laws. The costs of production of tea, comprises of various inputs 
which are required to be met by the Company as stipulated under various statutes both Central and 
State including the Plantation Labour Act. Thus, after meeting the various Central and State levies etc 
the industry is left with a very small margin to meet its other expenses for advertising, marketing and 
sale of the product. 
 
Comparatively high labour costs, high social cost over most other tea producing countries, high 
infrastructure costs remain the major problems for the Indian Tea Industry. Shortage of labour during 
peak season is also a cause for concern. 
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These problems need to be addressed by improved productivity. The Tea Industry both in Assam and 
in West Bengal have discussed with the Trade Unions and implemented productivity linked wages for 
the tea workers with a view to regain the Industry’s competitiveness in the global market. 
 
The vagaries of monsoon being unpredictable together with increase in wages and input cost could 
vary the profitability of the Company. Emphasis is to be laid on cost control through newer 
technologies in cultivation and mechanization. 
 
Risk & Concerns: 
 
The rapid spread of COVID - 19 pandemic across the world, including India, followed by Lockdowns 
have impacted the production.  Also, due to COVID - 19, production of Tea is adversely affected till 
date, resulting in loss of revenue, increased cost of production, which would adversely impact the 
profitability of the company. However, due to lower tea in supply chain, prices have firm up and shall 
remain buoyant during the year. High Value teas unlikely to witness major spurt in prices as global 
economies slow down and consistent quality and stalk free tea is an important component towards 
achieving better averages are the major risks to the industry. Also, the cost of production is 
substantially higher compared to other tea producing countries due to high labour wage and social 
cost. Any further increase in wage will substantially hit the bottom line. 
To mitigate various type of risks that the Company has to face, the Board of Directors of the Company 
has adopted a Risk Management Policy and implemented the same. 
 
Operational Performance: 
 
The Companies growth considering the past few years’ performance has been Outstanding. The 
Company is striving further increasing profits. The profit after tax from the operations for the year 
ended March 31, 2021 is Rs. 28,73,191as against Rs. 31,12,850 in a previous financial year. 

 

Market and Outlook: 

 
The Company is continuing its focus on quality and mechanization and expects that the performance 
to be stable in the current year. The COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in short-term disruptions in the 
industry, especially for out-of-home consumption. Even for essential products like Tea, there will be 
supply challenges before things get normalised. In the short term, we will also see consumers getting 
more value conscious and hence, the growth dynamics will change across the different tiers (economy 
/ premium). 
 
Internal Control System and their Adequacy: 
 
The Company has an adequate Internal Control System commensurate with the size and nature of its 

business. The preparation designing and documentation of Policy on Internal Financial Control has 

been finalized and implemented which will be reviewed periodically and modified suitably to ensure 

controls. The internal audit functions are carried out by a separate firm of Chartered Accountants. The 

quarterly audit reports, including significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon, are 

presented to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. 

 

Human Resources: 
 
Human Resource programs and initiatives in your Company are aligned to meet the business needs. 
Your company believes in investing in people to develop and expand their capability. The Company has 
been able to create a favorable work environment that motivates performance, customer focus and 
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innovation Company’s strategies are based, inter alia, on processes of continuous learning and 
improvement. 
 
Cautionary Statement: 
 
Statements in the Management Discussion & Analysis Report describing the Company’s expectations, 
opinion, and predictions may please be considered as “forward looking statements” only. Actual 
results could differ from those expressed or implied. Company’s operations should be viewed in light 
of changes in market conditions, prices of raw materials, economic developments in the country and 
such other factors. 
 
Key Financial Ratios: 
 
Pursuant to financial year the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), (Amendment), 
Regulations, 2018, the key financial ratios viz., Debtors Turnover, Inventory Turnover, Current Ratio, 
Operating Profit Margin (%), Net Profit (%), Return on Net Worth, Interest Coverage and Debt Equity 
ratios do not exceed significantly as compared to the immediately preceding Financial Year. 
 
Details pertaining to Net-worth of the Company: 
 

Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020 Explanation for change in Net-worth 

Net-worth 8,08,46,753 7,77,30,569 
Increase operational level including overheads 
and adverse market condition 

 
Place : Indore For & on behalf of Board of Directors of 

Date : 07.09.2021 SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED 

 

 

  SD/-           SD/- 

SHIV PRASAD AGARWAL  RAJ BANSAL 

MANAGING DIRECTOR   DIRECTOR 

DIN: 00545387    DIN: 00545292 
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CEO / CFO CERTIFICATE  

UNDER REGULATION 17(8) OF  

SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 

 

To 

The Board of Directors,  

Satya Shyam Trading Limited 

 

A. I have reviewed the Financial Statements and the cash flow statement of Satya Shyam Trading Limited for the year ended 31st March, 2021 

and to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

 

I. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading; 

 

II. These statements together present a true and fair view of the company's affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, 

applicable laws and regulations. 

 

B. There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or 

violative of the company's code of conduct. 

 

C. I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of 

internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting and have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies 

in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectifying 

these deficiencies. 

 

D. I have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 

 

I. Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

mailto:shyamsaty@rediffmail.com
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II. Significant changes in accounting policies made during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; 

and 

 

III. Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having 

a significant role in the company's internal control system over financial reporting. 

 

Place : Indore        For & on behalf of Board of Directors of          

Date : 30.06.2021       SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED 

 

         Sd/- 

         Vinod Kumar Daga   

         Chief Financial Officer    
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CODE OF CONDUCT AND CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE THEREOF 

 

 

 

This is to confirm that Company has adopted the Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management of the Company and is available 

on the website of the Company. 

 

 

I hereby confirm that the Company has obtained affirmation from all the Members of the Board and the Senior Management Personnel 

that they have complied with the Code of Conduct for the Financial Year 2020-21. 

 

 

This certificate is being given pursuant to Part D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 

 

Place : Indore                    For & on behalf of Board of Directors of 

Date : 07.09.2021                      SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED 

 

 

                              SD/-        SD/- 

                           SHIV PRASAD AGARWAL    RAJ BANSAL 

                           MANAGING DIRECTOR          DIRECTOR 

                           DIN: 00545387           DIN: 00545292 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTINDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTINDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTINDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT    
    
TO THE MEMBERS OF TO THE MEMBERS OF TO THE MEMBERS OF TO THE MEMBERS OF SATYA SHYAM TRADING SATYA SHYAM TRADING SATYA SHYAM TRADING SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDLIMITEDLIMITEDLIMITED    
    
REPORTREPORTREPORTREPORT    ON THE AUDIT OF THE ON THE AUDIT OF THE ON THE AUDIT OF THE ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTFINANCIAL STATEMENTFINANCIAL STATEMENTFINANCIAL STATEMENTSSSS    
    
OPINIONOPINIONOPINIONOPINION    
 
We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of SATYA SHYAM TRADING SATYA SHYAM TRADING SATYA SHYAM TRADING SATYA SHYAM TRADING 
LIMITED LIMITED LIMITED LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of 
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to 
the Financial Statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information.  
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Indian 
Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”), of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 
2021, its total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year 
ended on that date. 
 
BBBBASIS FOR OPINIONASIS FOR OPINIONASIS FOR OPINIONASIS FOR OPINION    
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code 
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under 
the provisions of the Act and Rules there under and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. 
 
EMPHASIS OF MATTERSEMPHASIS OF MATTERSEMPHASIS OF MATTERSEMPHASIS OF MATTERS    
    
The Operations of the Company during the year ended 31st March 2021 were marginally 
affected due to Lockdown announced by the Central / State Governments during the year 
in phased manner, due to the outbreak of Novel Corona virus COVID 19. 
 
Considering the restrictions in physical movement and visits to the company offices, the 
Company has given us access to their computer/ ERP System. We were able to access 
the relevant data & records for our Audit purpose. Further the company has provided all 
other data / information / records as required by us using e-data/ e-mail sharing modes. 
We also had continuous communication with the Audit Team & Management of the 
Company using various modes such as Audio/ Video Conferencing, etc. 
 
Due to the phase wise Lockdown imposed by Central / State Governments and the 
resulting travel restrictions, it was not possible for us to physically visit the Company on a 
regular basis and carry out the audit function. We have carried out the Audit Process 
using various techniques of Online Auditing. We have verified the records / documents / 
statements received by us through electronic media. We have also received Management 
Representation Letters wherever necessary. Using such techniques and relying on the 
inputs provided by the management, we have ensured reasonable assurance that the 
information / record / statements provided to us are free from material misstatement and 
adhere to the relevant standards. 



 
We have carried out the Audit Process subject to our disclosures as mentioned above. 
The audit evidence obtained by us is adequate to express our audit opinion. While 
expressing our audit opinion, we have also relied upon certifications by the management 
or certifications by other independent auditors, wherever required. 
 
KEY AUDIT MATTERSKEY AUDIT MATTERSKEY AUDIT MATTERSKEY AUDIT MATTERS    
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the Financial Statements of the current period. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the Financial Statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report. 
 

Sr. Sr. Sr. Sr. 
No.No.No.No.    

Key Audit MatterKey Audit MatterKey Audit MatterKey Audit Matter    Principal Audit Procedures/ Principal Audit Procedures/ Principal Audit Procedures/ Principal Audit Procedures/ Auditor’s Auditor’s Auditor’s Auditor’s 
ResponseResponseResponseResponse::::    

1111....    Appropriateness of Current / NonAppropriateness of Current / NonAppropriateness of Current / NonAppropriateness of Current / Non----current current current current 
classificationclassificationclassificationclassification    
    
    

For the purpose of current/non-current 
classification of assets and liabilities, 
the Company has ascertained its 
normal operating cycle as twelve 
months. This is based on the nature of 
business and the time between the 
acquisition of assets or inventories for 
Sales processing and their realisation 
in cash and cash equivalents.    
 
The classification of assets and 
liabilities has been done based on 
documentary evidence. Where 
conclusive evidence is not available, 
the classification has been done based 
on management’s best estimate of the 
period in which the assets would be 
realised, or the liabilities would be 
settled. We have evaluated the 
reasonability of the management’s 
estimates. 

2222....    NonNonNonNon----responses of external confirmations responses of external confirmations responses of external confirmations responses of external confirmations 
request perpetrated pursuant to SA request perpetrated pursuant to SA request perpetrated pursuant to SA request perpetrated pursuant to SA 505.505.505.505.    
    
COVID-19 has impacted the procedure of 
external confirmation request by 
management to vendors and customers. 
Postal facilities were not available in the 
near end of the financial year. To combat 
this, the management had sent positive 
external confirmation requests through 
electronic modes. However, due to 
suspension of business activities of many 
confirming parties, there are fewer 
confirmations received than anticipated. 
 
 
In such events, SA also directs the 
auditors to perform alternative audit 
procedures. 

 
 
 
In the absence of related 
confirmations, we performed 
alternative audit procedures like 
follow-up confirmation requests, 
verification of subsequent payments 
and receipts to verify part of the 
balances appearing in the books of 
accounts. 

3.3.3.3.    ProvisionsProvisionsProvisionsProvisions    and contingent liabilities and contingent liabilities and contingent liabilities and contingent liabilities 
relating to relating to relating to relating to taxation, litigations and taxation, litigations and taxation, litigations and taxation, litigations and 

Our audit procedures included: 
 



arbitrations.arbitrations.arbitrations.arbitrations.    
 
The provisions and contingent liabilities 
relate 
to ongoing litigations and claims with 
various 
authorities and third parties. These 
relate to direct tax, indirect tax, claims 
and general legal proceedings arising in 
the regular course of business. As at the 
year ended 31st March 2021, the 
amounts involved are significant. The 
computation of a provision or contingent 
liability requires significant judgement by 
the Company because of the inherent 
complexity in estimating future costs. 
The amount recognised as a provision is 
the best estimate of the expenditure. 
The provisions and contingent liabilities 
are subject to changes in the outcomes 
of litigations and claims and the positions 
taken by the Company. It involves 
significant judgement and estimation to 
determine the likelihood and timing of 
the cash outflows and interpretations of 
the legal aspects, tax legislations and 
judgements previously made by 
authorities. 

Understanding the process followed by 
the Company for assessment and 
determination of the amount of 
provisions and contingent liabilities 
relating to taxation, litigations and 
claims. 
Evaluating the design and 
implementation and testing operating 
effectiveness of key internal controls 
around the recognition and 
measurement of provisions and 
reassessment of contingent liabilities. 
Involving tax professionals with 
specialised skills and knowledge to 
assist in the assessment of the value 
of significant provisions and contingent 
liabilities relating to taxation matter, 
on sample basis, in light of the nature 
of the exposures, applicable 
regulations and related 
correspondence with the authorities. 
Inquiring the status in respect of 
significant provisions and contingent 
liabilities with the Company’s internal 
tax and legal team, including 
challenging the assumptions and 
critical judgements made by the 
Company which impacted the 
computation of the provisions and 
inspecting the computation. 

4.4.4.4.    MeasurementMeasurementMeasurementMeasurement    of inventory quantities of of inventory quantities of of inventory quantities of of inventory quantities of 
TeaTeaTeaTea    
    
As of 31st March 2021, the Company has 
tea inventory of `11031349. This was 
determined a key audit matter, as the 
measurement of these inventory 
quantities lying at the godowns involves 
significant judgement and estimate 
resulting from measuring the surface 
area. The Company uses internal and 
external experts, to perform volumetric 
assessments, basis which the quantity 
for these inventories is estimated. 

Our audit procedures relating to the Our audit procedures relating to the Our audit procedures relating to the Our audit procedures relating to the 
measurement of inventory includes the measurement of inventory includes the measurement of inventory includes the measurement of inventory includes the 
following:following:following:following:    

• Understanding and evaluating the 
design and operating 
effectiveness of controls over 
physical count and measurement 
of such inventory. 

• Evaluation of competency and 
capabilities of management’s 
experts. 

• Involving external expert for 
quantification of the inventories 
on sample basis. 

• Physically observing inventory 
measurement and count 
procedures carried out by 
management using experts, to 
ensure its appropriateness and 
completeness; and  

• Obtaining and inspecting, 
inventory measurement and 
physical count results for such 
inventories, including assessing 
and evaluating the results of 
analysis performed by 
management in respect of 
differences between book and 
physical quantities. 



5.5.5.5.    Timing of revenue recognition and Timing of revenue recognition and Timing of revenue recognition and Timing of revenue recognition and 
adjustments for quality variances adjustments for quality variances adjustments for quality variances adjustments for quality variances 
involving critical estimatesinvolving critical estimatesinvolving critical estimatesinvolving critical estimates    
    
 
Material estimation by the Company is 
involved in recognition and 
measurement of its revenue. The value 
and timing of revenue recognition for 
sale of goods varies from contract to 
contract, and the activity can span 
beyond the year end. 
Revenue from sale of goods is 
recognised when control is transferred to 
the customers and when there are no 
other unfulfilled obligations. This requires 
detailed analysis of each sale 
agreement/contract/customer purchase 
order regarding timing of revenue 
recognition. 
Inappropriate assessment could lead to a 
risk of revenue being recognized on sale 
of goods before the control in the goods 
is transferred to the customer.  
The variation in the contract price if not 
settled mutually between the parties to 
the contract is referred to third party 
testing and the Company estimates the 
adjustments required for revenue 
recognition pending settlement of such 
dispute. 
Such adjustments in revenue are made 
on estimated basis following historical 
trend. 
Inappropriate estimation could lead to a 
risk of revenue being overvalued or 
undervalued. 
Accordingly, timing of recognition of 
revenue and adjustments for quality 
variances involving critical estimates is a 
key audit matter.    

In view of the significance of the matter In view of the significance of the matter In view of the significance of the matter In view of the significance of the matter 
we applied the following we applied the following we applied the following we applied the following audit audit audit audit 
procedures in this area, among others procedures in this area, among others procedures in this area, among others procedures in this area, among others 
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence:evidence:evidence:evidence:    
    

• Assessing the Company’s 
accounting policies for revenue 
recognition by comparing with 
the applicable accounting 
standards i.e Ind AS 115. 

• Assessing the appropriateness of 
the estimated adjustments in the 
process. 

• Testing the design, 
implementation and operating 
effectiveness of key internal 
controls over timing of 
recognition of revenue from sale 
of goods and subsequent 
adjustments made to the 
transaction price. 

• Performing testing on selected 
statistical samples of customer 
contracts. Checked terms and 
condition related to acceptance of 
goods, acknowledged delivery 
receipts and tested the transit 
time to deliver the goods and its 
revenue recognition. Our tests of 
details focused on cut-off samples 
to verify only revenue pertaining 
to current year is recognized 
based on terms and conditions 
set out in sale agreements/ 
contracts and delivery 
documents. We also performed 
tests to establish the basis of 
estimation of the consideration 
and whether such estimates are 
commensurate with the 
accounting policy of the 
Company. 

 
INFORMATION OTHER THAN THEINFORMATION OTHER THAN THEINFORMATION OTHER THAN THEINFORMATION OTHER THAN THE    FINANCIALFINANCIALFINANCIALFINANCIAL    STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT 
THEREONTHEREONTHEREONTHEREON    
 
The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in Board’s Report 
including Annexure to Board’s Report and management compliance certificate but does 
not include the Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the Financial Statements, or our knowledge obtained during the course 
of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 



 
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is no material 
misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard. 
 
RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE 
FINANCIAL FINANCIAL FINANCIAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTSSTATEMENTSSTATEMENTSSTATEMENTS    
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) 
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true 
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS specified 
under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued there under. This 
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of 
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial 
Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so.  
 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process. 
 
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSAUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSAUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTSAUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS    
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial 
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 
a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can 
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these Financial Statements.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the Financial 
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control. 
 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3) 
(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 



company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.  
 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.  
 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events 
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial 
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a Statements that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.  
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Financial Statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in 
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter 
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTSREPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTSREPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTSREPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS    
 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued 
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of 
the Act, we give in the “Annexure A”“Annexure A”“Annexure A”“Annexure A”, a Statement on the matters specified in the 
paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

 
2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:  

 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which 

to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of 
our audit. 
 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept 
by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.  
 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statements of Profit and Loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income, Statements of Changes in Equity and the Cash 
Flow Statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books 
of account. 
 



d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply 
with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the 
Act. 
 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as 
on 31st March 2021, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 
directors is disqualified as on 31st March 2021 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 
 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over 
financial reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure BAnnexure BAnnexure BAnnexure B”. Our report 
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial 
reporting. 
 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as 
amended:  
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its 
directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 
of the Act. 

 
h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us:  
 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as of 
31st March 2021 on its financial position in its financial statements – 
Refer Note 23(2) to the financial Statements. 
 

ii. We draw attention to the Note 23(12) to the financial statements, 
as regards to the management evaluation of COVID-19 impact on 
the future performance of the Company. 
 

iii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including 
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable 
losses. 
 

iv. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to 
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during 
the year ended 31st March 2021. 

 
v. (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its 

knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the 
accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources 
or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries (if any); 
 
(ii) The management has represented, that, to the best of its 



knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the 
accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any 
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding 
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries (if any); and 
 
(iii) Based on such audit procedures that we (the auditors of the 
company) have considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances; nothing has come to our notice that has caused us 
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) 
contain any material misstatements. 

 
vi. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year 

in accordance with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

vii. As per the Notification dated 24/03/2021 regarding the use of 
accounting software for maintaining the books of account which has 
a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and whether the 
same has been operated throughout the year for all transactions 
recorded in the software and the audit trail feature has not been 
tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the 
company as per the statutory requirements for record retention has 
been deferred till 01/04/2022 vide notification dated 01/04/2021. 
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Annexure Annexure Annexure Annexure ––––    “A”“A”“A”“A”    to the Independent Auditor’s Reportto the Independent Auditor’s Reportto the Independent Auditor’s Reportto the Independent Auditor’s Report    
    
[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in [Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in [Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in [Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in 
the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of SATYA SHYAM TRADING SATYA SHYAM TRADING SATYA SHYAM TRADING SATYA SHYAM TRADING 
LIMITED LIMITED LIMITED LIMITED on the on the on the on the FFFFinancial inancial inancial inancial SSSStatements for the ytatements for the ytatements for the ytatements for the year ended 31ear ended 31ear ended 31ear ended 31stststst    March 2021]March 2021]March 2021]March 2021]    
 
The Annexure required under CARO, 2020 referred to in our Report to the members of 
the SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED (“the Company”) for the year ended 31st March 2021, 
and according to information and explanations given to us, we report as under:  
 

i. a) (A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, 
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.  
(B) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of 
intangible assets. 
b) These Property, Plant and Equipments have been physically verified by the 
management at reasonable intervals and as informed, no material discrepancies 
were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is 
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 
c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the 
company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of 
the lessee, if any) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of 
the company. 
d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including 
Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. 
e) The company does not have any benami property under the Benami 
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made there under, 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable. 
  

ii. (a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable 

intervals by the management and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of 
such verification by the management is appropriate. No discrepancies of 10% or 
more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed and they have 
been properly dealt with in the books of account (if any). 
(b) During the year, the company has not been sanctioned working capital limits 
in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on 
the basis of security of current assets. 
 

iii. During the year the company has not made investments in, provided any 
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, 
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any 
other parties, and, 
 
(a) During the year the company has not provided loans or provided advances in 
the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity 
and,  
 

 (A) The Company has, no subsidiaries and joint ventures to whom loans or    
advances and guarantees or security given.  
 (B) The aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the 
balance sheet date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees 
or security to parties other than subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates 
are as under: 
 
 
 
 
 
 



(Amount in `) 

Type of BorrowerType of BorrowerType of BorrowerType of Borrower    

2020202020202020----2021202120212021    2019201920192019----2020202020202020    

Aggregate Aggregate Aggregate Aggregate 
amount amount amount amount 

during the during the during the during the 
yearyearyearyear    

Balance Balance Balance Balance 
outstanding outstanding outstanding outstanding 

at the at the at the at the 
balance balance balance balance 

sheet datesheet datesheet datesheet date    

Aggregate Aggregate Aggregate Aggregate 
amount amount amount amount 

during the during the during the during the 
yearyearyearyear    

Balance Balance Balance Balance 
outstanding outstanding outstanding outstanding 

at the at the at the at the 
balance balance balance balance 

sheet datesheet datesheet datesheet date    

PromoterPromoterPromoterPromoter    0 0 0 0 

DirectorsDirectorsDirectorsDirectors    0 0 0 0 

Key managerial Key managerial Key managerial Key managerial 
personnelpersonnelpersonnelpersonnel    

0 0 0 0 

OthersOthersOthersOthers    0 0 0 0 

 
(b) During the year, the Company has not made investments, provided 
guarantees, and given security. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(b) of 
the Order is not applicable. 
(c) During the year no loans and advances in the nature of loans have been given, 
hence, the schedule of repayment of the principal and payment of interest has not 
been stipulated. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable. 
(d) During the year no loans and advances are given. Accordingly, the provisions 
with respect to stipulation as to repayment of clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not 
applicable. 
(e) During the year no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has 
fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted 
to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same parties. Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 3(iii)(e) of the Order is not applicable.  
(f) The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans 
either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of 
repayment, if so, specify the aggregate amount, percentage thereof to the total 
loans granted, aggregate amount of loans granted to Promoters, related parties 
as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable.  
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iv. In respect of investments the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the 
Companies Act have been complied with. During the year the company has not 
given any guarantees, and security. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(iv) of 
the Order is not applicable. 
 

v. In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of 
Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 
2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order is not 
applicable. 
 

vi. Since the company is a Trading company and is carrying on the business of Tea 
Trading, therefore the requirement of maintenance of cost records under sub 
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, the provisions 
of clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
vii. a. The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including 

Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, 
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and 
any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period 
of more than six months from the date they become payable. 
b. The following dues of Income Tax have not been deposited by the company on 
account of disputes: 
   

Name Name Name Name 
of of of of 

statutestatutestatutestatute    

Nature Nature Nature Nature 
of Duesof Duesof Duesof Dues    

Demand Demand Demand Demand 
(In `’000)(In `’000)(In `’000)(In `’000)    

Deposit Deposit Deposit Deposit 
(In ‘000)(In ‘000)(In ‘000)(In ‘000)    

Balance Balance Balance Balance 
Outstanding     Outstanding     Outstanding     Outstanding     
(In `‘000)(In `‘000)(In `‘000)(In `‘000)    

Period to Period to Period to Period to 
which which which which 
Amount Amount Amount Amount 
Relates Relates Relates Relates 
(A.Y.)(A.Y.)(A.Y.)(A.Y.)    

Forum Forum Forum Forum 
where where where where 
dispute dispute dispute dispute 

is is is is 
pendingpendingpendingpending    

Income 
Tax 
Act, 
1961 

Income 
Tax 

156.52 0 156.52 2010 CPC 

Income 
Tax 
Act, 
1961 

Income 
Tax 

43.35 0 43.35 2008 CPC 

Income 
Tax 
Act, 
1961 

TDS 52.46 0 52.46 Prior 
Years 

CPC 

    TotalTotalTotalTotal    252.3252.3252.3252.33333        222252.352.352.352.33333            

 
viii. There were no transactions, not recorded in the books of account which have 

been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments 
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). Accordingly, the provisions of 
clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
ix. a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in 

the payment of interest thereon to any lender. Accordingly, the provisions of 
clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 
b) The Company is not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution 
or other lender. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix)(b) of the Order is not 
applicable. 
c) The Company has not taken any term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of 
clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 



d) The Company has not raised any funds on short term basis which have been 
utilized for long term purposes. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix)(d) of 
the Order is not applicable. 
e) The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of 
or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable. 
f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities 
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures, or associate companies. Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

x. a) The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 
b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially, or optionally convertible) during 
the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not 
applicable. 
 

xi. a) No fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or 
reported during the year covered by our audit. Accordingly, the provisions of 
clause 3(xi)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 
b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been 
filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 3(xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 
c) There were no whistle-blower complaints, received during the year by the 
company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xi)(c) of the Order is not 
applicable. 
 

xii. In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions 
of clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

xiii. In our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with 
Sections 177 and 188 of Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have 
been disclosed in the financial statements etc., as required by the applicable 
Indian accounting standard.  

 
xiv. a) The company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and 

nature of its business. 
b) The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered 

by the statutory auditor. 

xv. In our opinion, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
the directors or persons connected with them covered under Section 192 of the 
Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
xvi. (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the 

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). Accordingly, the provisions of clause 
3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 
b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance 
activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank 
of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of 
clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable. 
c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the 
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the provisions of 
clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 
d) The Group does not have more than one CIC as part of the Group. Accordingly, 
the provisions of clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 
 



xvii. The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the 
immediately preceding financial year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xvii) 
of the Order is not applicable. 
 

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of 
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the financial statements, the auditor’s knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and management plans, we (the auditor) are of the opinion that no 
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report and that the 
company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet 
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date. 
 

xx. The provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the company. Accordingly, the 
provision of clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable. 
 

xxi. There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors 
in the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the companies 
included in the consolidated financial statements as the company has not 
performed any consolidation. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(xxi) of the 
Order is not applicable. 
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(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ (Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ (Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ (Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in in in in 
the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of SATYA SHYAM TRADING SATYA SHYAM TRADING SATYA SHYAM TRADING SATYA SHYAM TRADING 
LIMITED LIMITED LIMITED LIMITED on the on the on the on the Financial Financial Financial Financial StatementsStatementsStatementsStatements    for the year ended 31for the year ended 31for the year ended 31for the year ended 31stststst    MarchMarchMarchMarch    2022022022021111))))    
    
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of SubReport on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of SubReport on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of SubReport on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub----section 3 of Section 143 of section 3 of Section 143 of section 3 of Section 143 of section 3 of Section 143 of 
thethethethe    Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)    
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SSSSATYA SHYAM ATYA SHYAM ATYA SHYAM ATYA SHYAM 
TRADING LIMITEDTRADING LIMITEDTRADING LIMITEDTRADING LIMITED (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of 
the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 
 
MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLSMANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLSMANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLSMANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS    
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance 
Note“). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 
 
AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITYAUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITYAUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITYAUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY    
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial 
Controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatements of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting. 
 
MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL REFERENCE TO FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTSSTATEMENTSSTATEMENTSSTATEMENTS    
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 



preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that: 
  

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and 
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company.  

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors 
of the company; and  

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could 
have a material effect on the Financial Statements. 

    
INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE TO 
FINANCIAL FINANCIAL FINANCIAL FINANCIAL STATEMESTATEMESTATEMESTATEMENTSNTSNTSNTS 

 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, 
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to 
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
OPINIONOPINIONOPINIONOPINION    
 
In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given 
to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI. 
 
 
 

STATUTORY AUDITORSSTATUTORY AUDITORSSTATUTORY AUDITORSSTATUTORY AUDITORS    
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(` in '000)

Note No.Note No.Note No.Note No. 2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

2 4314.03 3024.45

3 15546.33 15276.34
4 232.55 232.55

(A)(A)(A)(A) 20092.9120092.9120092.9120092.91 18533.3418533.3418533.3418533.34

5 11031.35 8394.77

6 73388.47 89902.40
7 5348.19 2387.32
8 32799.14 5476.91

(B)(B)(B)(B) 122567.15122567.15122567.15122567.15 106161.40106161.40106161.40106161.40

(A+B)(A+B)(A+B)(A+B) 142660.06142660.06142660.06142660.06 124694.74124694.74124694.74124694.74

9 31880.96 31880.96
10 48965.79 45849.61

(A)(A)(A)(A) 80846.7580846.7580846.7580846.75 77730.5777730.5777730.5777730.57

11 25794.05 25695.13
388.41 481.51

(B)(B)(B)(B) 26182.4626182.4626182.4626182.46 26176.6426176.6426176.6426176.64

12

0.00 0.00

1071.22 14881.05

ii) Other current financial liabilities 13 3043.22 5016.72
14 30830.45 239.00
15 685.96 650.76

(C)(C)(C)(C) 35630.8535630.8535630.8535630.85 20787.5320787.5320787.5320787.53

(A+B+C)(A+B+C)(A+B+C)(A+B+C) 142660.06142660.06142660.06142660.06 124694.74124694.74124694.74124694.74
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Current AssetsCurrent AssetsCurrent AssetsCurrent Assets

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS

Other current assets

ASSETSASSETSASSETSASSETS

Non-Current AssetsNon-Current AssetsNon-Current AssetsNon-Current Assets

Inventories
Financial Assets:
i) Trade Receivables

Property Plant and Equipment

ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Financial Assets:
i) Investments
ii) Other non-current financial assets

Total Non-Current Liabilities               Total Non-Current Liabilities               Total Non-Current Liabilities               Total Non-Current Liabilities               

Current Liabilities Current Liabilities Current Liabilities Current Liabilities 

Total Non-Current AssetsTotal Non-Current AssetsTotal Non-Current AssetsTotal Non-Current Assets

Non-Current LiabilitiesNon-Current LiabilitiesNon-Current LiabilitiesNon-Current Liabilities

Total Current Assets           Total Current Assets           Total Current Assets           Total Current Assets           

TOTAL ASSETS                          TOTAL ASSETS                          TOTAL ASSETS                          TOTAL ASSETS                          

EQUITY AND LIABILITIESEQUITY AND LIABILITIESEQUITY AND LIABILITIESEQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EquityEquityEquityEquity
Equity Share Capital
Other Equity
Total Equity                                    Total Equity                                    Total Equity                                    Total Equity                                    

LiabilitiesLiabilitiesLiabilitiesLiabilities

Financial Liabilities:

i) Trade Payables

Other Current Liabilities
Provisions

(A) Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and Small 

Enterprises

(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 

enterprises and small enterprises.

SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2021BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2021BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2021BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2021

Total Current Liabilities                      Total Current Liabilities                      Total Current Liabilities                      Total Current Liabilities                      

TOTAL LIABILITIES                      TOTAL LIABILITIES                      TOTAL LIABILITIES                      TOTAL LIABILITIES                      

Deferred Tax Liabilities(Net)

Financial Liabilities:

See accompanying additional notes to the financial statementsSee accompanying additional notes to the financial statementsSee accompanying additional notes to the financial statementsSee accompanying additional notes to the financial statements

i) Borrowings



(` in '000)

Note No.Note No.Note No.Note No. 2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

16 367254.62 309000.52

17 763.35 1397.11

368017.97368017.97368017.97368017.97 310397.63310397.63310397.63310397.63

18 344101.71 276788.01

19 -2636.58 3733.09

20 5504.34 5368.86

21 2968.48 2989.30

2 493.88 468.47

22 13783.04 16823.62

364214.87364214.87364214.87364214.87 306171.35306171.35306171.35306171.35

3803.103803.103803.103803.10 4226.284226.284226.284226.28

929.90929.90929.90929.90 1113.431113.431113.431113.43

1050.00 1200.00

-120.10 -86.57

0.00 0.00

2873.202873.202873.202873.20 3112.853112.853112.853112.85

269.99 -622.24

-27.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

242.99242.99242.99242.99 -622.24-622.24-622.24-622.24

3116.193116.193116.193116.19 2490.612490.612490.612490.61

Earnings per equity share :Earnings per equity share :Earnings per equity share :Earnings per equity share :

(i) Basic (`) 0.90 0.98

(ii) Diluted (`) 0.90 0.98

See accompanying additional notes to the financial statementsSee accompanying additional notes to the financial statementsSee accompanying additional notes to the financial statementsSee accompanying additional notes to the financial statements 23232323
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DATE: 30.06.2021DATE: 30.06.2021DATE: 30.06.2021DATE: 30.06.2021

Total Comprehensive Income for the periodTotal Comprehensive Income for the periodTotal Comprehensive Income for the periodTotal Comprehensive Income for the period

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Revenue from Operations

Other Income

IncomeIncomeIncomeIncome

Purchase of Stock-in-Trade

ExpensesExpensesExpensesExpenses

(2) Deferred Tax Written Back

Other Expenses

Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade

Finance Costs

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Total Other Comprehensive Income for the periodTotal Other Comprehensive Income for the periodTotal Other Comprehensive Income for the periodTotal Other Comprehensive Income for the period

Depreciation and Amortization 

Tax Expenses :Tax Expenses :Tax Expenses :Tax Expenses :

Other comprehensive IncomeOther comprehensive IncomeOther comprehensive IncomeOther comprehensive Income

Profit for the Period for Continued OperationsProfit for the Period for Continued OperationsProfit for the Period for Continued OperationsProfit for the Period for Continued Operations

BBBB (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss

AAAA (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021

(3) Earlier Year Tax

(1) Current Tax

Total IncomeTotal IncomeTotal IncomeTotal Income

Employee Benefit Expenses

Total Expenses  Total Expenses  Total Expenses  Total Expenses  

Profit before Exceptional Items & TaxProfit before Exceptional Items & TaxProfit before Exceptional Items & TaxProfit before Exceptional Items & Tax

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS



A.A.A.A.

IIII Current Reporting Period:Current Reporting Period:Current Reporting Period:Current Reporting Period: (` in '000)

IIIIIIII Previous Reporting Period:Previous Reporting Period:Previous Reporting Period:Previous Reporting Period: (` in '000)

B. B. B. B. 

IIII Current Reporting Period:Current Reporting Period:Current Reporting Period:Current Reporting Period: (` in '000)

Capital ReserveCapital ReserveCapital ReserveCapital Reserve
Security Security Security Security 

PremiumPremiumPremiumPremium

General General General General 

ReserveReserveReserveReserve

Retained Retained Retained Retained 

EarningsEarningsEarningsEarnings

0.000.000.000.00 2988.842988.842988.842988.84 2000.002000.002000.002000.00 40742.9640742.9640742.9640742.96 45849.6145849.6145849.6145849.61

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.000.000.00

0.000.000.000.00 2988.842988.842988.842988.84 2000.002000.002000.002000.00 40742.9640742.9640742.9640742.96 45849.6145849.6145849.6145849.61

0.00 0.00 0.00 2873.20 2873.202873.202873.202873.20

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 242.99242.99242.99242.99

0.000.000.000.00 0.000.000.000.00 0.000.000.000.00 2873.202873.202873.202873.20 3116.193116.193116.193116.19

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.000.000.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.000.000.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.000.000.00

0.000.000.000.00 2988.842988.842988.842988.84 2000.002000.002000.002000.00 43616.1643616.1643616.1643616.16 48965.7948965.7948965.7948965.79

IIIIIIII Previous Reporting Period:Previous Reporting Period:Previous Reporting Period:Previous Reporting Period: (` in '000)

Capital ReserveCapital ReserveCapital ReserveCapital Reserve
Security Security Security Security 

PremiumPremiumPremiumPremium

General General General General 

ReserveReserveReserveReserve

Retained Retained Retained Retained 

EarningsEarningsEarningsEarnings

0.000.000.000.00 2988.842988.842988.842988.84 2000.002000.002000.002000.00 37630.1137630.1137630.1137630.11 43359.0043359.0043359.0043359.00

0.000.000.000.00

0.000.000.000.00

0.000.000.000.00 2.992.992.992.99 2000.002000.002000.002000.00 37630.1137630.1137630.1137630.11 40373.1540373.1540373.1540373.15

0.00 0.00 0.00 3112.85 3112.853112.853112.853112.85

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -622.24-622.24-622.24-622.24

0.000.000.000.00 0.000.000.000.00 0.000.000.000.00 3112.853112.853112.853112.85 2490.612490.612490.612490.61

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.000.000.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.000.000.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.000.000.00

0.000.000.000.00 2988.842988.842988.842988.84 2000.002000.002000.002000.00 40742.9640742.9640742.9640742.96 45849.6145849.6145849.6145849.61

For and on behalf of Board of Directors As Per our report of even date attached
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0.00

0.00

117.80117.80117.80117.80

0.00

Profit/(Loss) for the Year

Other Comprehensive Income for the Year

Balance at the end of the current Balance at the end of the current Balance at the end of the current Balance at the end of the current 

reporting periodreporting periodreporting periodreporting period

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS

0.00

Other ReservesOther ReservesOther ReservesOther Reserves

Fair value through OCIFair value through OCIFair value through OCIFair value through OCI

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

740.05740.05740.05740.05

Movement during the year

Balance at the end of the previous Balance at the end of the previous Balance at the end of the previous Balance at the end of the previous 

reporting periodreporting periodreporting periodreporting period

Dividends

Bonus Shares

Dividends

Bonus Shares

Movement during the year

Balance at the beginning of the previous Balance at the beginning of the previous Balance at the beginning of the previous Balance at the beginning of the previous 

reporting periodreporting periodreporting periodreporting period

Changes in accounting policy/prior period 

errors

Restated balances at the beginning of Restated balances at the beginning of Restated balances at the beginning of Restated balances at the beginning of 

the reporting periodthe reporting periodthe reporting periodthe reporting period

Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for 

the Yearthe Yearthe Yearthe Year

Transactions with owners in capacity as Transactions with owners in capacity as Transactions with owners in capacity as Transactions with owners in capacity as 

ownersownersownersowners

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS

Transactions with owners in capacity as Transactions with owners in capacity as Transactions with owners in capacity as Transactions with owners in capacity as 

ownersownersownersowners

117.80117.80117.80117.80

242.99

242.99242.99242.99242.99

Other Comprehensive Income for the Year

Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for 

the Yearthe Yearthe Yearthe Year

Balance at the beginning of the current Balance at the beginning of the current Balance at the beginning of the current Balance at the beginning of the current 

reporting periodreporting periodreporting periodreporting period

TotalTotalTotalTotal

117.80117.80117.80117.80

0.00

SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED

 STATEMENT OF CHNAGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2021 STATEMENT OF CHNAGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2021 STATEMENT OF CHNAGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2021 STATEMENT OF CHNAGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2021

OTHER EQUITYOTHER EQUITYOTHER EQUITYOTHER EQUITY

EQUITY SHARE CAPITALEQUITY SHARE CAPITALEQUITY SHARE CAPITALEQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Reserve and SurplusReserve and SurplusReserve and SurplusReserve and Surplus

2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

Changes in Equity Share Changes in Equity Share Changes in Equity Share Changes in Equity Share 

Capital due to prior period Capital due to prior period Capital due to prior period Capital due to prior period 

errorserrorserrorserrors

Restated balance at the Restated balance at the Restated balance at the Restated balance at the 

beginning of the current beginning of the current beginning of the current beginning of the current 

reporting periodreporting periodreporting periodreporting period

Changes in equity share Changes in equity share Changes in equity share Changes in equity share 

capital during the yearcapital during the yearcapital during the yearcapital during the year
2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021

31880.9631880.9631880.9631880.960.000.00

31880.9631880.9631880.9631880.960.000.00

Changes in equity share Changes in equity share Changes in equity share Changes in equity share 

capital during the yearcapital during the yearcapital during the yearcapital during the year
2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

Reserve and SurplusReserve and SurplusReserve and SurplusReserve and Surplus

0.0031880.9631880.9631880.9631880.96

2019-20192019-20192019-20192019-2019

Changes in Equity Share Changes in Equity Share Changes in Equity Share Changes in Equity Share 

Capital due to prior period Capital due to prior period Capital due to prior period Capital due to prior period 

errorserrorserrorserrors

Restated balance at the Restated balance at the Restated balance at the Restated balance at the 

beginning of the previous beginning of the previous beginning of the previous beginning of the previous 

reporting periodreporting periodreporting periodreporting period

Profit/(Loss) for the Year

Restated balances at the beginning of Restated balances at the beginning of Restated balances at the beginning of Restated balances at the beginning of 

the reporting periodthe reporting periodthe reporting periodthe reporting period

Changes in accounting policy/prior period 

0.0031880.9631880.9631880.9631880.96

TotalTotalTotalTotal

Other ReservesOther ReservesOther ReservesOther Reserves

Fair value through OCIFair value through OCIFair value through OCIFair value through OCI

-622.24-622.24-622.24-622.24

0.00

0.00

0.00

360.80360.80360.80360.80

0.00

740.05740.05740.05740.05

0.00

-622.24



(` in '000)

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS 2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIESA) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIESA) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIESA) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit Before Tax Net Profit Before Tax Net Profit Before Tax Net Profit Before Tax 3803.09 4226.28

Add/Less: Adjustment for:Add/Less: Adjustment for:Add/Less: Adjustment for:Add/Less: Adjustment for:

Depreciation 493.88 468.47

Dividend Income -1.39 -15.50

Deferred tax -120.10 -86.57

Earlier Year Expenses 0.00 192.02

Earlier Year Income 0.00 -103.77

Operating Profit Before Working Capital ChangesOperating Profit Before Working Capital ChangesOperating Profit Before Working Capital ChangesOperating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 4175.484175.484175.484175.48 4680.934680.934680.934680.93

Movement in Working CapitalMovement in Working CapitalMovement in Working CapitalMovement in Working Capital

Decrease/(increase) in inventories -2636.58 3733.09

Decrease in trade receivables 16513.95 945.76

Decrease/ (increase) in other non current financial assets 0.00 2.50

Decrease/ (increase) in other current assets -27322.23 1504.79

(Decrease)/ increase in other current liabilities 30591.45 -315.87

Increase in other current financial liabilities -1973.49 227.49

(Decrease) in trade Payable -13809.85 -8867.28

(Decrease)/ increase in provisions 35.19 -322.87

Cash generated from OperationsCash generated from OperationsCash generated from OperationsCash generated from Operations 5573.915573.915573.915573.91 1588.551588.551588.551588.55

Tax expense for the year -929.90 -1113.43

Earlier Year Direct Tax paid (net) 0.00 -88.25

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities                                             Net Cash Used in Operating Activities                                             Net Cash Used in Operating Activities                                             Net Cash Used in Operating Activities                                               (A)  (A)  (A)  (A) 4644.024644.024644.024644.02 386.87386.87386.87386.87

B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

Purchases of Fixed Assets -1783.46 -37.90

Dividend Income 1.39 15.50

Net Cash used in Investing Activities                                  Net Cash used in Investing Activities                                  Net Cash used in Investing Activities                                  Net Cash used in Investing Activities                                    (B)  (B)  (B)  (B) -1782.07-1782.07-1782.07-1782.07 -22.41-22.41-22.41-22.41

C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIESC) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIESC) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIESC) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipts/(Repayment) of borrowings 98.92 -415.77

Net Cash generated from Financing Activities        Net Cash generated from Financing Activities        Net Cash generated from Financing Activities        Net Cash generated from Financing Activities          (C)  (C)  (C)  (C) 98.9298.9298.9298.92 -415.77-415.77-415.77-415.77

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Net increase in cash and cash equivalents Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)(A+B+C)(A+B+C)(A+B+C) 2960.872960.872960.872960.87 -51.30-51.30-51.30-51.30

Opening Balance of Cash & Cash EquivalentsOpening Balance of Cash & Cash EquivalentsOpening Balance of Cash & Cash EquivalentsOpening Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents 2387.322387.322387.322387.32 2438.632438.632438.632438.63

Closing Balance of Cash & Cash EquivalentsClosing Balance of Cash & Cash EquivalentsClosing Balance of Cash & Cash EquivalentsClosing Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents 5348.195348.195348.195348.19 2387.322387.322387.322387.32

Notes to the Statement of Cash Flow :Notes to the Statement of Cash Flow :Notes to the Statement of Cash Flow :Notes to the Statement of Cash Flow :

2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

5348.195348.195348.195348.19 2387.322387.322387.322387.32

ii) The Statement of Cash Flow has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ set out in Ind AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flow’.

(Amount in `)

Acquisition of Acquisition of Acquisition of Acquisition of 

SubsidiarySubsidiarySubsidiarySubsidiary

Disposal of Disposal of Disposal of Disposal of 

SubsidiarySubsidiarySubsidiarySubsidiary

Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value 

AdjustmentAdjustmentAdjustmentAdjustment
Other ChangesOther ChangesOther ChangesOther Changes

Long term borrowings (Refer 

note 11)
25695.1325695.1325695.1325695.13 98.92 0 0 0 0 25794.0525794.0525794.0525794.05

Acquisition of Acquisition of Acquisition of Acquisition of 

SubsidiarySubsidiarySubsidiarySubsidiary

Disposal of Disposal of Disposal of Disposal of 

SubsidiarySubsidiarySubsidiarySubsidiary

Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value 

AdjustmentAdjustmentAdjustmentAdjustment
Other ChangesOther ChangesOther ChangesOther Changes

Long term borrowings (Refer 

note 11)
26110.9026110.9026110.9026110.90 -415.77 0 0 0 0 25695.1325695.1325695.1325695.13

For and on behalf of Board of Directors As Per our report of even date attached

Statutory AuditorsStatutory AuditorsStatutory AuditorsStatutory Auditors

For SAP JAIN & ASSOCIATESFor SAP JAIN & ASSOCIATESFor SAP JAIN & ASSOCIATESFor SAP JAIN & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTSCHARTERED ACCOUNTANTSCHARTERED ACCOUNTANTSCHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

RAJ BANSALRAJ BANSALRAJ BANSALRAJ BANSAL ICAI FRN 019356CICAI FRN 019356CICAI FRN 019356CICAI FRN 019356C

DIRECTORDIRECTORDIRECTORDIRECTOR

(DIN: 00545292)(DIN: 00545292)(DIN: 00545292)(DIN: 00545292) VINOD DAGAVINOD DAGAVINOD DAGAVINOD DAGA

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERCHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERCHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERCHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

(AEVPD3335A)(AEVPD3335A)(AEVPD3335A)(AEVPD3335A)

SHIV PRASAD AGARWALSHIV PRASAD AGARWALSHIV PRASAD AGARWALSHIV PRASAD AGARWAL

MANAGING DIRECTORMANAGING DIRECTORMANAGING DIRECTORMANAGING DIRECTOR CACACACA  NIKITA BILALA NIKITA BILALA NIKITA BILALA NIKITA BILALA

(DIN: 00545387)(DIN: 00545387)(DIN: 00545387)(DIN: 00545387) VRISHTI KAUSHIKVRISHTI KAUSHIKVRISHTI KAUSHIKVRISHTI KAUSHIK PARTNERPARTNERPARTNERPARTNER

PLACE: INDORE                                        PLACE: INDORE                                        PLACE: INDORE                                        PLACE: INDORE                                        COMPANY SECRETARYCOMPANY SECRETARYCOMPANY SECRETARYCOMPANY SECRETARY ICAI MNO 429690ICAI MNO 429690ICAI MNO 429690ICAI MNO 429690

DATE: 30.06.2021                                                        DATE: 30.06.2021                                                        DATE: 30.06.2021                                                        DATE: 30.06.2021                                                        (DOFPK5535A)(DOFPK5535A)(DOFPK5535A)(DOFPK5535A) ICAI UDIN: 21429690AAAAAZ8968ICAI UDIN: 21429690AAAAAZ8968ICAI UDIN: 21429690AAAAAZ8968ICAI UDIN: 21429690AAAAAZ8968

Financing Financing Financing Financing 

cashflowscashflowscashflowscashflows
2018-20192018-20192018-20192018-2019

Non-cash changesNon-cash changesNon-cash changesNon-cash changes

2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS

Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet (Refer note 7)

2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS

(iii) As per the amendment in Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flow' : Disclosure of changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including 

both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes:

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021

SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED

2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020
Financing Financing Financing Financing 

cashflowscashflowscashflowscashflows

Non-cash changesNon-cash changesNon-cash changesNon-cash changes

i) Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with the Balance Sheet:



NOTE - 2NOTE - 2NOTE - 2NOTE - 2
PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENTPROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENTPROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENTPROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 (` in '000)

2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020 AdditionsAdditionsAdditionsAdditions DeductionsDeductionsDeductionsDeductions 2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020
Depreciation for Depreciation for Depreciation for Depreciation for 

the yearthe yearthe yearthe year
On disposalsOn disposalsOn disposalsOn disposals 2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

A. Tangible AssetsA. Tangible AssetsA. Tangible AssetsA. Tangible Assets

a) Buildinga) Buildinga) Buildinga) Building
Flat at Indore 250.00 0.00 0.00 250.00 84.83 3.95 0.00 88.78 161.23 165.18

Flat at Ahmedabad 1377.00 0.00 0.00 1377.00 399.88 21.76 0.00 421.64 955.36 977.12

Flat at Jaipur 0.00 1679.31 0.00 1679.31 0.00 30.10 0.00 30.10 1649.21 0.00

    b) Plant and Equipmentb) Plant and Equipmentb) Plant and Equipmentb) Plant and Equipment 2104.85 0.00 0.00 2104.85 1429.72 133.24 0.00 1562.95 541.90 675.14

c) Furniture and Fixturesc) Furniture and Fixturesc) Furniture and Fixturesc) Furniture and Fixtures 450.82 0.00 0.00 450.82 395.23 42.83 0.00 438.06 12.77 55.59

d) Vehiclesd) Vehiclesd) Vehiclesd) Vehicles
Four Wheeler 2088.99 0.00 0.00 2088.99 957.48 248.17 0.00 1205.65 883.33 1131.50

Two Wheeler 44.57 0.00 0.00 44.57 42.34 0.00 0.00 42.34 2.23 2.23

Cycle 14.05 0.00 0.00 14.05 10.47 1.33 0.00 11.80 2.25 3.58

e) Computer & Softwaree) Computer & Softwaree) Computer & Softwaree) Computer & Software 900.56 104.15 0.00 1004.71 886.44 12.51 0.00 898.95 105.76 14.12

Current YearCurrent YearCurrent YearCurrent Year 7230.847230.847230.847230.84 1783.461783.461783.461783.46 0.000.000.000.00 9014.309014.309014.309014.30 4206.394206.394206.394206.39 493.88493.88493.88493.88 0.000.000.000.00 4700.274700.274700.274700.27 4314.034314.034314.034314.03 3024.453024.453024.453024.45

Previous YearPrevious YearPrevious YearPrevious Year 7192.947192.947192.947192.94 37.9037.9037.9037.90 0.000.000.000.00 7230.847230.847230.847230.84 3737.923737.923737.923737.92 468.47468.47468.47468.47 0.000.000.000.00 4206.394206.394206.394206.39 3024.453024.453024.453024.45 3455.023455.023455.023455.02

During the year, the Company has not carried out any revaluation.

2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020 (` in '000)

2018-20192018-20192018-20192018-2019 AdditionsAdditionsAdditionsAdditions DeductionsDeductionsDeductionsDeductions 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020 2018-20192018-20192018-20192018-2019
Depreciation for Depreciation for Depreciation for Depreciation for 

the yearthe yearthe yearthe year
On disposalsOn disposalsOn disposalsOn disposals 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020 2018-20192018-20192018-20192018-2019

A. Tangible AssetsA. Tangible AssetsA. Tangible AssetsA. Tangible Assets

a) Buildinga) Buildinga) Buildinga) Building
Flat at Indore 250.00 0.00 0.00 250.00 80.88 3.95 0.00 84.83 165.18 169.13

Flat at Ahmedabad 1377.00 0.00 0.00 1377.00 378.12 21.76 0.00 399.88 977.12 998.88

    b) Plant and Equipmentb) Plant and Equipmentb) Plant and Equipmentb) Plant and Equipment 2104.85 0.00 0.00 2104.85 1296.74 132.98 0.00 1429.72 675.14 808.12

c) Furniture and Fixturesc) Furniture and Fixturesc) Furniture and Fixturesc) Furniture and Fixtures 420.05 30.77 0.00 450.82 352.45 42.78 0.00 395.23 55.59 67.61

d) Vehiclesd) Vehiclesd) Vehiclesd) Vehicles
Four Wheeler 2088.99 0.00 0.00 2088.99 709.31 248.17 0.00 957.48 1131.50 1379.67

Two Wheeler 44.57 0.00 0.00 44.57 42.34 0.00 0.00 42.34 2.23 2.23

Cycle 14.05 0.00 0.00 14.05 9.13 1.33 0.00 10.47 3.58 4.92

e) Computer & Softwaree) Computer & Softwaree) Computer & Softwaree) Computer & Software 893.43 7.13 0.00 900.56 868.95 17.49 0.00 886.44 14.12 24.48

Current YearCurrent YearCurrent YearCurrent Year 7192.947192.947192.947192.94 37.9037.9037.9037.90 0.000.000.000.00 7230.847230.847230.847230.84 3737.923737.923737.923737.92 468.47468.47468.47468.47 0.000.000.000.00 4206.394206.394206.394206.39 3024.453024.453024.453024.45 3455.023455.023455.023455.02

Previous YearPrevious YearPrevious YearPrevious Year 7191.637191.637191.637191.63 7.507.507.507.50 6.196.196.196.19 7192.947192.947192.947192.94 3274.523274.523274.523274.52 463.40463.40463.40463.40 0.000.000.000.00 3737.923737.923737.923737.92 3455.023455.023455.023455.02 3917.113917.113917.113917.11

During the year, the Company has not carried out any revaluation.

SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS

Gross BlockGross BlockGross BlockGross Block Accumulated DepreciationAccumulated DepreciationAccumulated DepreciationAccumulated Depreciation Net BlockNet BlockNet BlockNet Block

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS

Gross BlockGross BlockGross BlockGross Block Accumulated DepreciationAccumulated DepreciationAccumulated DepreciationAccumulated Depreciation Net BlockNet BlockNet BlockNet Block



NOTE - 3NOTE - 3NOTE - 3NOTE - 3

INVESTMENTSINVESTMENTSINVESTMENTSINVESTMENTS (` in '000)

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS 2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

Shares & Securities (Quoted, Unquoted, At Fair Value, At Cost)Shares & Securities (Quoted, Unquoted, At Fair Value, At Cost)Shares & Securities (Quoted, Unquoted, At Fair Value, At Cost)Shares & Securities (Quoted, Unquoted, At Fair Value, At Cost)
(a) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted, at fair value) 429.31 238.74
(b) Investment in Equity Instruments (Un-quoted, at book value) 13550.45 13550.45
(c) Investment in Mutual Fund (Quoted, at fair value) 1550.27 1470.84
(d) Investment in Non-convertible Debenture (Un-Quoted, at book value) 16.31 16.31

TotalTotalTotalTotal 15546.3315546.3315546.3315546.33 15276.3415276.3415276.3415276.34

Note: Investments are valued at fair values as per Ind AS 113

NOTE - 4NOTE - 4NOTE - 4NOTE - 4

OTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETSOTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETSOTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETSOTHER NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS (` in '000)

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS 2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

(Secured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)(Secured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)(Secured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)(Secured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Deposits With Government Authorities 11.90 11.90
FDR (Pledge with Sales Tax Deposit) 220.65 220.65

TotalTotalTotalTotal 232.55232.55232.55232.55 232.55232.55232.55232.55

SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED



NOTE - 5NOTE - 5NOTE - 5NOTE - 5
INVENTORIESINVENTORIESINVENTORIESINVENTORIES
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value) (` in '000)

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS 2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

11031.35 8394.77

11031.3511031.3511031.3511031.35 8394.778394.778394.778394.77

(` in '000)

2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

0.00 0.00
117.69 30.37
234.23 395.17

69500.40 85834.18
3770.38 3779.49

-234.22 -136.80

73388.4773388.4773388.4773388.47 89902.4089902.4089902.4089902.40

Trade Receivables ageing schedule:Trade Receivables ageing schedule:Trade Receivables ageing schedule:Trade Receivables ageing schedule:

Less than 6 monthsLess than 6 monthsLess than 6 monthsLess than 6 months 6 months -1 year6 months -1 year6 months -1 year6 months -1 year 1-2 years1-2 years1-2 years1-2 years 2-3 years2-3 years2-3 years2-3 years More than 3 yearsMore than 3 yearsMore than 3 yearsMore than 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered 

good
73270.77 0.00 117.70 0.00 0.00 73388.4773388.4773388.4773388.47

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have 

significant increase in credit risk
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.000.000.00

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit 

impaired
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 234.22 234.22234.22234.22234.22

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables–considered good 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.000.000.00

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have 

significant increase in credit risk
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.000.000.00

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.000.000.00

SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED

PARTICULARS PARTICULARS PARTICULARS PARTICULARS 

2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021

TotalTotalTotalTotal
Outstanding for following periods from due date of paymentOutstanding for following periods from due date of paymentOutstanding for following periods from due date of paymentOutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

(As Taken, Valued and Certified by Management)(As Taken, Valued and Certified by Management)(As Taken, Valued and Certified by Management)(As Taken, Valued and Certified by Management)
Stock-in-Trade of Tea

TotalTotalTotalTotal

NOTE - 6NOTE - 6NOTE - 6NOTE - 6

TRADE RECEIVABLESTRADE RECEIVABLESTRADE RECEIVABLESTRADE RECEIVABLES

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS

Over Due for More than Six Months Over Due for More than Six Months Over Due for More than Six Months Over Due for More than Six Months 
Considered Good
- Related Parties
- Other than Related Parties
Considered Doubtful
OthersOthersOthersOthers

Total Total Total Total 

- Related Parties
- Other than Related Parties

Less:Less:Less:Less: Allowance for credit losses



Less than 6 monthsLess than 6 monthsLess than 6 monthsLess than 6 months 6 months -1 year6 months -1 year6 months -1 year6 months -1 year 1-2 years1-2 years1-2 years1-2 years 2-3 years2-3 years2-3 years2-3 years More than 3 yearsMore than 3 yearsMore than 3 yearsMore than 3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered 

good
89613.67 30.37 0.00 0.00 0.00 89644.0489644.0489644.0489644.04

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have 

significant increase in credit risk
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.000.000.00

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit 

impaired
0.00 0.00 160.95 234.22 0.00 395.17395.17395.17395.17

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables–considered good 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.000.000.00

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have 

significant increase in credit risk
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.000.000.00

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.000.000.00

NOTE - 7NOTE - 7NOTE - 7NOTE - 7

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSCASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSCASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSCASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (` in '000)

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS 2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

Balances with Banks 4971.46 2194.32
Cash on Hand 376.73 193.00

Total Total Total Total 5348.195348.195348.195348.19 2387.322387.322387.322387.32

NOTE - 8NOTE - 8NOTE - 8NOTE - 8

OTHER CURRENT ASSETSOTHER CURRENT ASSETSOTHER CURRENT ASSETSOTHER CURRENT ASSETS (` in '000)

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS 2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

Advance Against Property Purchases (JPR) 0.00 1679.31

Advances to staff 1058.57 1732.24
Advances to others 151.83 67.20
Prepaid expenses 26.77 36.75
GST Credit Receivables 31302.76 838.53
Advances to Branch/ Division 0.00 1111.34
Advance Tax and TDS 1309.22 1211.54
Less: Provision for Income Tax -1050.00 -1200.00

Total Total Total Total 32799.1432799.1432799.1432799.14 5476.915476.915476.915476.91

PARTICULARS PARTICULARS PARTICULARS PARTICULARS 

2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

TotalTotalTotalTotal
Outstanding for following periods from due date of paymentOutstanding for following periods from due date of paymentOutstanding for following periods from due date of paymentOutstanding for following periods from due date of payment



NOTE - 9NOTE - 9NOTE - 9NOTE - 9

EQUITY SHARE CAPITALEQUITY SHARE CAPITALEQUITY SHARE CAPITALEQUITY SHARE CAPITAL (` in '000)

NumberNumberNumberNumber `̀̀̀ NumberNumberNumberNumber `̀̀̀

AuthorisedAuthorisedAuthorisedAuthorised

Equity Shares of `10 each 3250000 32500.00 3250000 32500.00

Issued, Subscribed & Paid upIssued, Subscribed & Paid upIssued, Subscribed & Paid upIssued, Subscribed & Paid up

Equity Shares of `10 each 3188096 31880.96 3188096 31880.96

TotalTotalTotalTotal 3188096318809631880963188096 31880.9631880.9631880.9631880.96 3188096318809631880963188096 31880.9631880.9631880.9631880.96

a) Reconciliation of the Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:a) Reconciliation of the Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:a) Reconciliation of the Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:a) Reconciliation of the Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year: (` in '000)

NumberNumberNumberNumber `̀̀̀ NumberNumberNumberNumber `̀̀̀

Shares Outstanding at the Beginning of the Year 3188096318809631880963188096 31880.9631880.9631880.9631880.96 3188096318809631880963188096 31880.9631880.9631880.9631880.96

Shares Issued during the Year 0 0.00 0 0.00

Bonus Share Issued during the year 0 0.00 0 0.00

Shares Bought Back during the Year 0 0.00 0 0.00

Shares Outstanding at the end of the YearShares Outstanding at the end of the YearShares Outstanding at the end of the YearShares Outstanding at the end of the Year 3188096318809631880963188096 31880.9631880.9631880.9631880.96 3188096318809631880963188096 31880.9631880.9631880.9631880.96

b) Terms / Rights attached to Equity Shares:b) Terms / Rights attached to Equity Shares:b) Terms / Rights attached to Equity Shares:b) Terms / Rights attached to Equity Shares:

c) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of Share Capital of the Company:c) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of Share Capital of the Company:c) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of Share Capital of the Company:c) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% of Share Capital of the Company:

No. of Shares heldNo. of Shares heldNo. of Shares heldNo. of Shares held % of Holding % of Holding % of Holding % of Holding No. of Shares heldNo. of Shares heldNo. of Shares heldNo. of Shares held % of Holding % of Holding % of Holding % of Holding 

New Tea Company Ltd. 435440 13.65% 435440 13.65%

Eagle Vanijya Pvt. Ltd. 192000 6.02% 192000 6.02%

Gaytri Devi Agarwal 249600 7.83% 249600 7.83%

Divya Agarwal 219040 6.87% 219040 6.87%

Bhagwati Prasad Agarwal 208960 6.55% 208960 6.55%

Manju Devi Agarwal 200000 6.27% 200000 6.27%

TotalTotalTotalTotal 1505040150504015050401505040 47.19%47.19%47.19%47.19% 1505040150504015050401505040 47.19%47.19%47.19%47.19%

d) Shares held by promoters at the end of the year:d) Shares held by promoters at the end of the year:d) Shares held by promoters at the end of the year:d) Shares held by promoters at the end of the year:

NumberNumberNumberNumber % of Holding % of Holding % of Holding % of Holding NumberNumberNumberNumber % of Holding % of Holding % of Holding % of Holding 

Roshanlal Agarwala and sons HUF 3200 0.10% 3200 0.10% 0.00%

Sharda Devi Agarwala 14400 0.45% 14400 0.45% 0.00%

Roshanlal Agarwala 88000 2.76% 88000 2.76% 0.00%

Saroj Devi Bansal 9600 0.30% 9600 0.30% 0.00%

Deepak Bansal 5280 0.17% 5280 0.17% 0.00%

Shiv Prasad Agarwala 10112 0.32% 10112 0.32% 0.00%

Santosh Devi Agarwal 640 0.02% 640 0.02% 0.00%

Raj Bansal 14880 0.47% 14880 0.47% 0.00%

Rohit Bansal 51200 1.61% 51200 1.61% 0.00%

Akhil Bansal 69440 2.18% 69440 2.18% 0.00%

Binod Kumar Bansal 160 0.01% 160 0.01% 0.00%

Siddharth Bansal 17600 0.55% 17600 0.55% 0.00%

Ashok Kumar Bansal 4800 0.15% 4800 0.15% 0.00%

ANK Leasing and Finance Ltd 65408 2.05% 65408 2.05% 0.00%

Multipack Plastics Private Limited 3200 0.10% 3200 0.10% 0.00%

Atal Tea Co.(1943) Ltd 66000 2.07% 66000 2.07% 0.00%

Rheabari Tea Company Private Limited 58080 1.82% 58080 1.82% 0.00%

New Tea Co. Ltd 435440 13.66% 435440 13.66% 0.00%

Candour Engineering Private Limited 4800 0.15% 4800 0.15% 0.00%

Bijalimoni Tea And Finance Private Limited 48000 1.51% 48000 1.51% 0.00%

Eagle Vanijya Pvt Ltd 192000 6.02% 192000 6.02% 0.00%

Hindusthan Building Society Ltd 96000 3.01% 96000 3.01% 0.00%

1258240125824012582401258240 39.47%39.47%39.47%39.47% 1258240125824012582401258240 39.47%39.47%39.47%39.47% 0.00%0.00%0.00%0.00%

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS

2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021

SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS
2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-20202020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021

2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021

The company has only one class of shares i.e. equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The 

company declares and pays dividends, (if any), in Indian rupees. The dividend, if proposed, by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in 

the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The company has not issued any share without payment being received in cash by way of bonus (if any) or in pursuant to any contract during  the period of last five 

years.

The company has not bought back any share during the period of last five years.

Name of Shareholders Name of Shareholders Name of Shareholders Name of Shareholders 
2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020 % Change during % Change during % Change during % Change during 

the yearthe yearthe yearthe year



NOTE - 10NOTE - 10NOTE - 10NOTE - 10

OTHER EQUITYOTHER EQUITYOTHER EQUITYOTHER EQUITY (` in '000)

2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

Securities PremiumSecurities PremiumSecurities PremiumSecurities Premium

Balance as per last year 2988.84 2988.84

Less: Bonus Shares Issued 0.00 0.00

Closing BalanceClosing BalanceClosing BalanceClosing Balance 2988.842988.842988.842988.84 2988.842988.842988.842988.84

General Reserve General Reserve General Reserve General Reserve 

Balance as per last year 2000.002000.002000.002000.00 2000.002000.002000.002000.00

Retained earningsRetained earningsRetained earningsRetained earnings

Opening balanceOpening balanceOpening balanceOpening balance 40742.9640742.9640742.9640742.96 37630.1137630.1137630.1137630.11

Add/ Less: Profit/ Loss for the year 2873.20 3112.85

Closing BalanceClosing BalanceClosing BalanceClosing Balance 43616.1643616.1643616.1643616.16 40742.9640742.9640742.9640742.96

Fair value through other comprehensive incomeFair value through other comprehensive incomeFair value through other comprehensive incomeFair value through other comprehensive income

Opening balanceOpening balanceOpening balanceOpening balance 117.80117.80117.80117.80 740.05740.05740.05740.05

Add/ Less: Movement for the year 242.99 -622.24

Closing BalanceClosing BalanceClosing BalanceClosing Balance 360.80360.80360.80360.80 117.80117.80117.80117.80

TotalTotalTotalTotal 48965.7948965.7948965.7948965.79 45849.6145849.6145849.6145849.61

Nature and purpose of Reserves:Nature and purpose of Reserves:Nature and purpose of Reserves:Nature and purpose of Reserves:

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS

Securities premium: Securities premium: Securities premium: Securities premium: The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium Reserve. 

RetainedRetainedRetainedRetained earnings:earnings:earnings:earnings: Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to statutory reserve, debenture redemption reserve,

general reserve, dividends distributions paid to shareholders and transfer from debenture redemption reserve.
General Reserves: General Reserves: General Reserves: General Reserves: General reserve is a free reserve and it represents amount transferred from retained earnings.

FVOCIFVOCIFVOCIFVOCI equityequityequityequity instrument:instrument:instrument:instrument: The fair value changes of the long term investments in securities have been recognised in reserves under FVOCI equity instruments as at the

date of transition and subsequently in the other comprehensive income for the year.



NOTE - 11NOTE - 11NOTE - 11NOTE - 11

BORROWINGSBORROWINGSBORROWINGSBORROWINGS (` in '000)

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS 2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

Unsecured LoansUnsecured LoansUnsecured LoansUnsecured Loans
- From other parties 25794.05 25695.13

TotalTotalTotalTotal 25794.0525794.0525794.0525794.05 25695.1325695.1325695.1325695.13

NOTE - 12NOTE - 12NOTE - 12NOTE - 12

TRADE PAYABLESTRADE PAYABLESTRADE PAYABLESTRADE PAYABLES (` in '000)

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS 2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

(A) Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and Small Enterprises 0.000.000.000.00 0.000.000.000.00

(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises.

- Related Parties 1000.39 6337.80

- Others 70.83 8543.24

1071.221071.221071.221071.22 14881.0514881.0514881.0514881.05

TotalTotalTotalTotal 1071.221071.221071.221071.22 14881.0514881.0514881.0514881.05

* Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“MSMED Act”) (` in '000)

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS 2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

Principal amount due and remain unpaid 0.00 0.00
Interest due on above and remain unpaid 0.00 0.00
Interest paid 0.00 0.00
Payment made beyond appointed day during the year 0.00 0.00
Interest due and payable for the period of delay 0.00 0.00
Interest accrued and remaining unpaid 0.00 0.00

Amount of further interest due and payable in succeeding years 0.00 0.00

Trade Payables ageing schedule:Trade Payables ageing schedule:Trade Payables ageing schedule:Trade Payables ageing schedule: (` in '000)

Less than 1 yearLess than 1 yearLess than 1 yearLess than 1 year 1-2 years1-2 years1-2 years1-2 years 2-3 years2-3 years2-3 years2-3 years More than 3 yearsMore than 3 yearsMore than 3 yearsMore than 3 years TotalTotalTotalTotal

(i) MSME 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.000.000.00
(ii) Others 209.24 773.75 14.40 73.82 1071.221071.221071.221071.22
(iii) Disputed dues – MSME 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.000.000.00

(iv)Disputed dues - Others 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.000.000.00

Less than 1 yearLess than 1 yearLess than 1 yearLess than 1 year 1-2 years1-2 years1-2 years1-2 years 2-3 years2-3 years2-3 years2-3 years More than 3 yearsMore than 3 yearsMore than 3 yearsMore than 3 years TotalTotalTotalTotal

(i) MSME 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.000.000.00
(ii) Others 14377.70 380.44 0.00 122.93 14881.0714881.0714881.0714881.07
(iii) Disputed dues – MSME 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.000.000.00

(iv)Disputed dues - Others 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.000.000.00

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS

2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

Outstanding for following periods from due date of paymentOutstanding for following periods from due date of paymentOutstanding for following periods from due date of paymentOutstanding for following periods from due date of payment

SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED

The Disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to Micro and Small Enterprises have been made in the financial statements based on the information received and available with

the Company. 

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS

2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021

Outstanding for following periods from due date of paymentOutstanding for following periods from due date of paymentOutstanding for following periods from due date of paymentOutstanding for following periods from due date of payment



NOTE - 13NOTE - 13NOTE - 13NOTE - 13

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIESOTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIESOTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIESOTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (` in '000)

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS 2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

Creditors for expenses 2964.60 4886.78
Auditors Remuneration 78.63 76.50
Employee Dues 0.00 53.44

TotalTotalTotalTotal 3043.223043.223043.223043.22 5016.725016.725016.725016.72

NOTE - 14NOTE - 14NOTE - 14NOTE - 14

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIESOTHER CURRENT LIABILITIESOTHER CURRENT LIABILITIESOTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES (` in '000)

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS 2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

Statutory dues (including GST, TDS, PF and others) 30773.69 140.67
Others 56.76 98.33

TotalTotalTotalTotal 30830.4530830.4530830.4530830.45 239.00239.00239.00239.00

NOTE - 15NOTE - 15NOTE - 15NOTE - 15

PROVISIONSPROVISIONSPROVISIONSPROVISIONS (` in '000)

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS 2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

Provision for employee benefits 685.96 650.76

TotalTotalTotalTotal 685.96685.96685.96685.96 650.76650.76650.76650.76



NOTE - 16NOTE - 16NOTE - 16NOTE - 16

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONSREVENUE FROM OPERATIONSREVENUE FROM OPERATIONSREVENUE FROM OPERATIONS (` in '000)

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS 2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

Revenue from Contracts with CustomersRevenue from Contracts with CustomersRevenue from Contracts with CustomersRevenue from Contracts with Customers

Sale of ProductsSale of ProductsSale of ProductsSale of Products

- To related parties 362685.79 299546.34

- To others 4568.83 9454.19

TotalTotalTotalTotal 367254.62367254.62367254.62367254.62 309000.52309000.52309000.52309000.52

NOTE - 17NOTE - 17NOTE - 17NOTE - 17

OTHER INCOMEOTHER INCOMEOTHER INCOMEOTHER INCOME (` in '000)

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS 2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

Booking Exp (JPR) 0.00 13.79

Cartage & Hammali (Net) 8.54 9.01

Claim & Shortage 47.06 201.76

Dividend Received 1.39 15.50

Earlier Year Income 0.00 103.77

Interest from Debtor Parties 5.24 0.94

Machine Hire Charges (Related Party) 577.18 577.18

Miscellaneous Receipts (w/o) 123.94 475.16

TotalTotalTotalTotal 763.35763.35763.35763.35 1397.111397.111397.111397.11

NOTE - 18NOTE - 18NOTE - 18NOTE - 18

PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE (INCLUDING DIRECT EXPENSES)PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE (INCLUDING DIRECT EXPENSES)PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE (INCLUDING DIRECT EXPENSES)PURCHASE OF STOCK-IN-TRADE (INCLUDING DIRECT EXPENSES) (` in '000)

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS 2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

Purchase(GST) 

(Including related party purchase `68994437)
344101.71 276788.01

TotalTotalTotalTotal 344101.71344101.71344101.71344101.71 276788.01276788.01276788.01276788.01

NOTE - 19NOTE - 19NOTE - 19NOTE - 19

CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF STOCK-IN-TRADECHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF STOCK-IN-TRADECHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF STOCK-IN-TRADECHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE (` in '000)

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS 2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

(Increase) / Decrease in Stocks(Increase) / Decrease in Stocks(Increase) / Decrease in Stocks(Increase) / Decrease in Stocks

Opening StockOpening StockOpening StockOpening Stock

Stock in Trade 8394.77 12127.86

Less : Closing StockLess : Closing StockLess : Closing StockLess : Closing Stock

Stock in Trade 11031.35 8394.77

TotalTotalTotalTotal -2636.58-2636.58-2636.58-2636.58 3733.093733.093733.093733.09

NOTE - 20NOTE - 20NOTE - 20NOTE - 20

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSESEMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSESEMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSESEMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (` in '000)

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS 2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

Salaries and wages 5372.23 5173.32

Contribution to PF and other funds 0.00 25.67

Staff Welfare Expenses 132.11 169.87

TotalTotalTotalTotal 5504.345504.345504.345504.34 5368.865368.865368.865368.86

SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED



NOTE - 21NOTE - 21NOTE - 21NOTE - 21

FINANCE COSTSFINANCE COSTSFINANCE COSTSFINANCE COSTS (` in '000)

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS 2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

Interest ExpensesInterest ExpensesInterest ExpensesInterest Expenses

Interest Paid 2959.72 2982.58

Other Borrowing CostOther Borrowing CostOther Borrowing CostOther Borrowing Cost

Bank Processing Fees 8.76 6.72

TotalTotalTotalTotal 2968.482968.482968.482968.48 2989.302989.302989.302989.30

NOTE - 22NOTE - 22NOTE - 22NOTE - 22

OTHER EXPENSESOTHER EXPENSESOTHER EXPENSESOTHER EXPENSES (` in '000)

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS 2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

DIRECT EXPENSESDIRECT EXPENSESDIRECT EXPENSESDIRECT EXPENSES

Cartage & Hammali 126.36 171.87

Freight charges 10630.77 12721.47

Hammali & Wages 19.50 13.68

10776.6310776.6310776.6310776.63 12907.0212907.0212907.0212907.02

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSESADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSESADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSESADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Advertisement & Publicity 41.04 26.45

Auditors Remuneration (Note 23(4)) 0.00 0.00

- Statutory Audit 60.00 60.00

- Tax Audit 10.00 10.00

- Certification & Consultancy 15.00 15.00

Bad Debts 24.14 1.59

Expected credit loss 234.22 136.80

Brokerage, Discount & Rebates 630.18 1238.25

Charity & Donation 11.00 23.20

Director's LIC (Superannuation) 531.00 531.00

Earlier Year Expenses 0.00 192.02

Insurance Charges 77.45 46.97

Legal & Professional Fees 549.34 545.07

Printing and Stationery 29.95 35.32

Postage & Telegram Charges 28.68 157.68

Rates & Taxes 9.35 7.01

Rent

- Related Parties 412.20 401.40

- Others 27.46 30.36

Repairing and Maintanence 144.85 144.10

Telephone Charges 16.42 10.95

Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 51.31 111.88

Other Expenditure 102.81 191.56

3006.413006.413006.413006.41 3916.603916.603916.603916.60

TotalTotalTotalTotal 13783.0413783.0413783.0413783.04 16823.6216823.6216823.6216823.62

SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED



ADDITIONAL NOTES TO THE FINANCIALS STATEMENTS:ADDITIONAL NOTES TO THE FINANCIALS STATEMENTS:ADDITIONAL NOTES TO THE FINANCIALS STATEMENTS:ADDITIONAL NOTES TO THE FINANCIALS STATEMENTS:

1)1)1)1)

2)2)2)2) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:  

3)3)3)3) Tax expenses as per IND AS 12:Tax expenses as per IND AS 12:Tax expenses as per IND AS 12:Tax expenses as per IND AS 12:

aaaa Deferred Tax:

Profit and Loss:Profit and Loss:Profit and Loss:Profit and Loss: (` in '000)

2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

4314.03 3024.45

2643.82 1111.26

1670.21 1913.20

420.36420.36420.36420.36 481.51481.51481.51481.51

-234.22 -136.80

-58.95-58.95-58.95-58.95 0.000.000.000.00

361.41361.41361.41361.41 481.51481.51481.51481.51

481.51 568.08

-120.10-120.10-120.10-120.10 -86.57-86.57-86.57-86.57

Other Comprehensive Income:Other Comprehensive Income:Other Comprehensive Income:Other Comprehensive Income: (` in '000)

2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

269.99 -622.24
27.0027.0027.0027.00 -62.22-62.22-62.22-62.22
0.00 0.00

27.0027.0027.0027.00 0.000.000.000.00

bbbb

(` in '000)

2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

3803.093803.093803.093803.09 4226.284226.284226.284226.28
957.16 1063.67

0.00 3.90
72.80 91.12
0.00 0.00

20.04 41.31
1050.001050.001050.001050.00 1200.001200.001200.001200.00

cccc Provision For TaxationProvision For TaxationProvision For TaxationProvision For Taxation

4)4)4)4) Auditor’s Remuneration (Excluding GST):Auditor’s Remuneration (Excluding GST):Auditor’s Remuneration (Excluding GST):Auditor’s Remuneration (Excluding GST): (` in '000)

2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

60.00 60.00

10.00 10.00

15.00 15.00

85.0085.0085.0085.00 85.0085.0085.0085.00

5)5)5)5)

IIII Name of related parties:Name of related parties:Name of related parties:Name of related parties:

a) b) Key Managerial Personnel:Key Managerial Personnel:Key Managerial Personnel:Key Managerial Personnel:

1)  Atal Tea Company Ltd. 1) Shiv Prasad Agrawal : Managing Director

2)  Balason Tea Company Ltd. 2) Ashok Kumar Bansal : Whole Time Director

3)  Chandan Tea Industries Pvt. Ltd. 3) Raj Bansal : Director

4)  Chandan Mall Binod Kumar (Proprietorship) 4) Binod Kumar Bansal : Director

5)  Cooch Behar Agro Tea Estate P. Ltd. 5) Siddharth Bansal : Director

6)  New Tea Company Ltd. 6) Vandana Bansal : Women Director

7)  New Tea Marketing Pvt. Ltd. 7) Vrishti Kaushik : Company Secretary

8)  North Dinajpur Tea Agro Ltd. 8) Vinod Daga : Chief Financial Officer

9)  Senchal Agro Pvt. Ltd.

10) Shyam Tea Co. Ltd.

11) Micro Multicom Pvt. Ltd.

c) Relative of Key Managerial Personnel:Relative of Key Managerial Personnel:Relative of Key Managerial Personnel:Relative of Key Managerial Personnel:

1) Nisha Devi Bansal

2) Sharda Devi Agrawal

3) Santosh Devi Agarwal

SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard-24 the related party disclosure is as under, the information regarding related party from

which transaction during the year have been determined to the extent, such parties have been identified on the basis of information 

Associates in which key managerial personnel & their Associates in which key managerial personnel & their Associates in which key managerial personnel & their Associates in which key managerial personnel & their 

relatives exercise significant influence:relatives exercise significant influence:relatives exercise significant influence:relatives exercise significant influence:

The company is contingently liable in respect of Income Tax Demand `199.87 Thousands (Pr.Yr. `24.99 Thousands) and amount

deposited there against under protest ` NIL (Pr.Yr. `Nil) and in respect of TDS Demand `52.46 Thousands (Pr.Yr.`Nil) and amount

deposited there against under protest ` NIL (Pr.Yr. `Nil)

Notes 1 to 23 Referred herein above forms an integral part of these Financial Statements.

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS

WDV as per Company Law 

WDV as per Income Tax 

Timing Difference of Depreciation

Accumulated deferred Tax Liability Accumulated deferred Tax Liability Accumulated deferred Tax Liability Accumulated deferred Tax Liability 

Provision for expected credit losses (Trade receivables)

Accumulated deferred Tax Asset Accumulated deferred Tax Asset Accumulated deferred Tax Asset Accumulated deferred Tax Asset 

Accumulated deferred Tax Liability/ (Asset) Accumulated deferred Tax Liability/ (Asset) Accumulated deferred Tax Liability/ (Asset) Accumulated deferred Tax Liability/ (Asset) 

Liability/ (Asset) Already Provided up to 31.03.2020

Balance Liability provided / (written off) during the yearBalance Liability provided / (written off) during the yearBalance Liability provided / (written off) during the yearBalance Liability provided / (written off) during the year

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS

Fair Valuation of quoted investments
Accumulated deferred tax liability/ (asset) on aboveAccumulated deferred tax liability/ (asset) on aboveAccumulated deferred tax liability/ (asset) on aboveAccumulated deferred tax liability/ (asset) on above
Liability/ (Asset) Already recognized up to 31.03.2020
Balance Liability provided/ (written off) during the yearBalance Liability provided/ (written off) during the yearBalance Liability provided/ (written off) during the yearBalance Liability provided/ (written off) during the year

Tax Audit Fees

Certification and Consultancy

TotalTotalTotalTotal

Other temporary differences (Short/(Excess) Provision in current year
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss (relating to continuing operation)Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss (relating to continuing operation)Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss (relating to continuing operation)Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss (relating to continuing operation)

Provision for taxation for the year has been made after considering allowance, claims and relief available to the Company,if any.

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS

Statutory Audit Fees

Profit before tax from continuing operationProfit before tax from continuing operationProfit before tax from continuing operationProfit before tax from continuing operation
Income Tax expense calculated @ 25.168% (115BAA)
Effect of income that is exempt from taxation
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profits
Adjustments recognised in current year in relation to the current tax of prior years

Note: As per Ind AS 8, if the financial effect of following a new accounting policy is immaterial for transactions and events, then the

company may follow any accounting policy. The company has changed the policy and recognised deferred tax asset (net) in the current 

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AS PER INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD - 24RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AS PER INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD - 24RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AS PER INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD - 24RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AS PER INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD - 24

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows :



IIIIIIII Transactions with related parties (on arm's length basis) for the year ended 31/03/2021:Transactions with related parties (on arm's length basis) for the year ended 31/03/2021:Transactions with related parties (on arm's length basis) for the year ended 31/03/2021:Transactions with related parties (on arm's length basis) for the year ended 31/03/2021: (` in '000)

Name(s) of the Related PartyName(s) of the Related PartyName(s) of the Related PartyName(s) of the Related Party RelationshipRelationshipRelationshipRelationship
Nature of Nature of Nature of Nature of 

TransactionTransactionTransactionTransaction

Volume of Volume of Volume of Volume of 

TransactionTransactionTransactionTransaction

Amount Amount Amount Amount 

OutstandingOutstandingOutstandingOutstanding

(2020-2021)(2020-2021)(2020-2021)(2020-2021)

Amount Amount Amount Amount 

OutstandingOutstandingOutstandingOutstanding

(2019-2020)(2019-2020)(2019-2020)(2019-2020)

Chandanmall Binod Kumar 

(Indore)
Director is Partner Sales 2.38 0.00 -428.73

North Dinajpur Tea Agro Private 

Limited
Common Director Purchase 77738.77 212.24 -5095.05

Common Director Sale 369098.37 66064.55 82297.66

Rent Paid 61.60

Machine Hire 577.18
New Tea Company Ltd. Common Director Purchase 1533.28 -773.75 -1179.25
Atal Tea Company Ltd. Common Director Purchase 1904.18 -7.87 -7.87
Senchal Agro Private Ltd. Common Director Purchase 8451.47 0.00 0.00

Whole time Director Director 1740.00
LIC Super Annuation 261.00
Godown Rent 90.00

Managing Director LIC Super Annuation 270.00
Director 1800.00

Raj Bansal Director Godown Rent 90.00 0.00 0.00

Vrishti Kaushik Company Secretary Salary 180.00 0.00 0.00

Vinod Daga
Chief Financial 

Officer
Salary 661.50 434.20 673.93

Sharda Devi Agarwal
Director's Brother 

Wife
Godown Rent 90.00 0.00 0.00

Nisha Devi Bansal
Director's Brother 

Wife
Godown Rent 90.00 0.00 0.00

Shyam Tea Company Director is Partner Sales 2074.58 3435.84 3487.41

6)6)6)6) EARNING PER SHARE:EARNING PER SHARE:EARNING PER SHARE:EARNING PER SHARE:

(` in '000)

2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

2873.19 3112.85

3188096 3188096

0.900.900.900.90 0.980.980.980.98

0.900.900.900.90 0.980.980.980.98

7)7)7)7)

8)8)8)8)

a

b

c

9)9)9)9)

a

b

10)10)10)10)

Loans and Advances in the nature of Loans to Subsidiary.

Loans and Advances in the nature of loan to Associates, Related Party and parties where directors are interested.

Financial risk management objectives and policies:Financial risk management objectives and policies:Financial risk management objectives and policies:Financial risk management objectives and policies:

The Company’s risk management activities are subject to the management direction and control under the framework of Risk

Management Policy as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Management ensures appropriate risk governance

framework for the Company through appropriate policies and procedures and that risks are identified, measured and managed in 

The investments are classified under respective heads for purposes as mentioned in their object clause.

Guarantee Given or Security Provided:Guarantee Given or Security Provided:Guarantee Given or Security Provided:Guarantee Given or Security Provided:

During the year there has been no such transaction.

Disclosure Pursuant to regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015.Disclosure Pursuant to regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015.Disclosure Pursuant to regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015.Disclosure Pursuant to regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015.

There are no transactions during the year in respect of:-

In accordance with the IND AS - 109, the long-term investments held by the Company are to be carried at Fair value or Cost. All the

investments of the Company have been considered by the management to be of long - term in nature and no provision, if any, for the

diminution in the value of investments is considered necessary. The relevant share certificates are subject to Verification/ Confirmation.

Pursuant to disclosure pertaining to Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 the following are the details thereof:Pursuant to disclosure pertaining to Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 the following are the details thereof:Pursuant to disclosure pertaining to Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 the following are the details thereof:Pursuant to disclosure pertaining to Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 the following are the details thereof:

Loan given–outstanding as at the year-end:Loan given–outstanding as at the year-end:Loan given–outstanding as at the year-end:Loan given–outstanding as at the year-end:

During the year there has been no such transaction.

Investments Made:Investments Made:Investments Made:Investments Made:

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS

Profit after Tax

No. of  Shares Outstanding

Earning Per Share Basic

Earning Per Share Basic (Diluted)

The Company is primarily exposed to risks resulting from fluctuation in market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk, which may adversely

impact the fair value of its financial instruments.

In accordance with IND AS 33 the Earning Per Share of the company stands as under :

New Tea Marketing Private 

Limited

0.00

0.00

Ashok Kumar Bansal 0.00

Shiv Prasad Agarwal 0.00



a) Market riskMarket riskMarket riskMarket risk

b) Credit riskCredit riskCredit riskCredit risk

Trade and other receivables:Trade and other receivables:Trade and other receivables:Trade and other receivables:

(` in '000)

c) Liquidity riskLiquidity riskLiquidity riskLiquidity risk

Expected contractual maturity for Financial Liabilities:Expected contractual maturity for Financial Liabilities:Expected contractual maturity for Financial Liabilities:Expected contractual maturity for Financial Liabilities: (` in '000)

Less than 1 YearLess than 1 YearLess than 1 YearLess than 1 Year 1 to 5 years1 to 5 years1 to 5 years1 to 5 years >5 years>5 years>5 years>5 years TotalTotalTotalTotal

0.00 25794.05 0.00 25794.0525794.0525794.0525794.05

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.000.000.00

1071.22 0.00 0.00 1071.221071.221071.221071.22

3043.22 0.00 0.00 3043.223043.223043.223043.22

4114.444114.444114.444114.44 25794.0525794.0525794.0525794.05 0.000.000.000.00 29908.4929908.4929908.4929908.49

0.00 25695.13 0.00 25695.1325695.1325695.1325695.13

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.000.000.000.00

14881.07 0.00 0.00 14881.0714881.0714881.0714881.07

5016.72 0.00 0.00 5016.725016.725016.725016.72

19897.7819897.7819897.7819897.78 25695.1325695.1325695.1325695.13 0.000.000.000.00 45592.9145592.9145592.9145592.91

d) Capital ManagementCapital ManagementCapital ManagementCapital Management

Gearing Ratio:Gearing Ratio:Gearing Ratio:Gearing Ratio: (` in '000)

2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

25794.05 25695.13

5348.19 2387.32

20445.8620445.8620445.8620445.86 23307.8123307.8123307.8123307.81

80846.75 77730.57

0.250.250.250.25 0.300.300.300.30Net Debt to equity ratioNet Debt to equity ratioNet Debt to equity ratioNet Debt to equity ratio

Trade Payables

Others current financial liabilities

TotalTotalTotalTotal

TotalTotalTotalTotal

As at 31st March, 2020As at 31st March, 2020As at 31st March, 2020As at 31st March, 2020

Long-term Borrowings

Short-term Borrowings

The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt (borrowings less cash and bank balances) divided by total equity 

plus net debt.

Up to 6 months

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the

equity shareholders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to

continue as a going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximise shareholder value.

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS

Debt

Cash and cash equivalent (Refer Note 7)

Adjusted net DebtAdjusted net DebtAdjusted net DebtAdjusted net Debt

Total Equity

As at 31st March, 2021As at 31st March, 2021As at 31st March, 2021As at 31st March, 2021

Long-term Borrowings

Short-term Borrowings

Trade Payables

Others current financial liabilities

More than 6 months

TotalTotalTotalTotal

Market risk is the risk that future earnings and fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate because of changes

in market price. Market risk comprises of currency risk and interest risk.

i) Interest risk : During the year there is no such transaction.

ii) Foreign currency exchange risk : During the year there is no such transaction.

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty or customer will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a loss to the Company.

Financial instruments that are subject to credit risk principally consist of Loans, Trade and Other Receivables, Cash & Cash Equivalents,

Investments and Other Financial Assets. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

Credit risk encompasses both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks.

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of counter parties on continuous basis with appropriate approval

mechanism for sanction of credit limits. Credit risk from balances with banks, financial institutions and investments is managed by the

Company’s treasury team in accordance with the Company’s risk management policy. Cash and cash equivalents and Bank Deposits are 

Since the Company has a fairly diversified portfolio of receivables in terms of spread, no concentration risk is foreseen. 

To Manage trade and other receivables, the company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking in to account the

financial conditions, economic trends, analysis to historical bad debts and ageing of such receivables.

Liquidity risk refers the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities.

The Company’s objective is to provide financial resources to meet its obligations when they are due in a timely, cost effective and

reliable manner without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The Company monitors liquidity

risk using cash flow forecasting models. These models consider the maturity of its financial investments, committed funding and 

The tables below provide details regarding contractual maturities of significant liabilities as at the end of each year end presented.

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables has been considered from the date the invoice falls 

due:

2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

89613.67

425.54

90039.2190039.2190039.2190039.21

2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021

73270.77

351.91

73622.6873622.6873622.6873622.68

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS



11)11)11)11) Financial Instruments by Category and fair value hierarchy:Financial Instruments by Category and fair value hierarchy:Financial Instruments by Category and fair value hierarchy:Financial Instruments by Category and fair value hierarchy:

(` in '000)

2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS FVTPLFVTPLFVTPLFVTPL FVOCIFVOCIFVOCIFVOCI Amortised CostAmortised CostAmortised CostAmortised Cost Level-1Level-1Level-1Level-1 Level-2Level-2Level-2Level-2 Level-3Level-3Level-3Level-3

Financial assetsFinancial assetsFinancial assetsFinancial assets

Investments 0.00 1979.58 13566.76 1979.58 0.00 0.00

Cash and cash equivalents 0.00 0.00 5348.19 0.00 0.00 0.00

Bank balances other than cash and cash 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Trade Receivables 0.00 0.00 73388.46 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other financial assets 0.00 0.00 232.55 0.00 0.00 0.00

TotalTotalTotalTotal 0.000.000.000.00 1979.581979.581979.581979.58 92535.9692535.9692535.9692535.96 1979.581979.581979.581979.58 0.000.000.000.00 0.000.000.000.00

Financial liabilitiesFinancial liabilitiesFinancial liabilitiesFinancial liabilities

Borrowings 0.00 0.00 25794.05 0.00 0.00 0.00

Trade Payables 0.00 0.00 1071.22 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other financial liabilities 0.00 0.00 3043.22 0.00 0.00 0.00

TotalTotalTotalTotal 0.000.000.000.00 0.000.000.000.00 29908.4929908.4929908.4929908.49 0.000.000.000.00 0.000.000.000.00 0.000.000.000.00

(` in '000)

2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020

PARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARSPARTICULARS FVTPLFVTPLFVTPLFVTPL FVOCIFVOCIFVOCIFVOCI Amortised CostAmortised CostAmortised CostAmortised Cost Level-1Level-1Level-1Level-1 Level-2Level-2Level-2Level-2 Level-3Level-3Level-3Level-3

Financial assetsFinancial assetsFinancial assetsFinancial assets

Investments 0.00 1709.58 13566.76 1709.58 0.00 0.00

Cash and cash equivalents 0.00 0.00 2387.32 0.00 0.00 0.00

Bank balances other than cash and cash 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Trade Receivables 0.00 0.00 89902.40 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other financial assets 0.00 0.00 232.55 0.00 0.00 0.00

TotalTotalTotalTotal 0.000.000.000.00 1709.581709.581709.581709.58 106089.03106089.03106089.03106089.03 1709.581709.581709.581709.58 0.000.000.000.00 0.000.000.000.00

Financial liabilitiesFinancial liabilitiesFinancial liabilitiesFinancial liabilities

Borrowings 0.00 0.00 25695.13 0.00 0.00 0.00

Trade Payables 0.00 0.00 14881.07 0.00 0.00 0.00

Other financial liabilities 0.00 0.00 5016.72 0.00 0.00 0.00

TotalTotalTotalTotal 0.000.000.000.00 0.000.000.000.00 45592.9145592.9145592.9145592.91 0.000.000.000.00 0.000.000.000.00 0.000.000.000.00

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

12)12)12)12) Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19:Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19:Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19:Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19:

13)13)13)13) Indications of Impairment:Indications of Impairment:Indications of Impairment:Indications of Impairment:

14)14)14)14)

15)15)15)15) Financial RatiosFinancial RatiosFinancial RatiosFinancial Ratios

ParticularsParticularsParticularsParticulars 2020-20212020-20212020-20212020-2021 2019-20202019-20202019-20202019-2020 VarianceVarianceVarianceVariance

Current Ratio 3.44 5.11 -32.64%

Debt-Equity Ratio 0.32 0.33 -3.20%

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 2.28 2.42 -5.46%

Return on Equity Ratio 0.11 0.12 -7.72%

Inventory turnover ratio 36.26 28.60 26.82%

Trade Receivables turnover ratio 4.50 3.42 31.57%

Trade payables turnover ratio 43.14 14.20 203.77%

Net capital turnover ratio 3.43 2.97 15.39%

Net profit ratio 0.78% 1.01% -22.34%

Return on Capital employed 6.32% 6.94% -8.92%

Return on investment 8.36% 9.27% -9.80%

16)16)16)16) Events after reporting dateEvents after reporting dateEvents after reporting dateEvents after reporting date

17)17)17)17)

18)18)18)18)

19)19)19)19) Additional information as required under Part II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 is as under:

(i)(i)(i)(i) Earnings in foreign Exchange - Cr. Yr. `NIL (Pr. Yr. ` NIL)

(ii)(ii)(ii)(ii) CIF value of Imported items: ` NIL

The flat situated at Jaipur, is yet to be registered in the company's name, though the same is in the possession of the company based on additional documents as per the

records of the Municipal Authority.

----

----

----

----

There have been no events after the reporting date that require adjustment/ disclosure in these financial statements.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities included in the level 2 and level 3 categories have been determined in accordance with generally accepted

pricing models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that are

reasonable approximations of fair values.

Fair Value MeasurementFair Value MeasurementFair Value MeasurementFair Value Measurement Fair Value hierarchyFair Value hierarchyFair Value hierarchyFair Value hierarchy

To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into three levels prescribed

under the Ind AS. An explanation for each level is given below.

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 in the preparation of these financial statements including the

recoverability of carrying amounts of financial and non financial assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the global economic

conditions because of this pandemic, the Company has, at the date of approval of these financial statements, used internal and external sources of information that the

carrying amount of these assets will be recovered.

Fair Value MeasurementFair Value MeasurementFair Value MeasurementFair Value Measurement Fair Value hierarchyFair Value hierarchyFair Value hierarchyFair Value hierarchy

In the opinion of management, there are no indications, internal or external which could have the effect of impairing the value of assets to any material extent as at the

Balance sheet date requiring recognition in terms of IND AS-36.   

There were no such transactions that were not recorded in the books of accounts that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments

under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

Reasons for varianceReasons for varianceReasons for varianceReasons for variance

Due to Increase in Purchases by the company

Due to fact that company's collection of accounts receivable is 

efficient and credit sales of the company has increased

Due to the policy adopted by company of paying off creditors 

quickly 

----

----

Company's Current ratio improves due to the proper 

management of its Current assets

As per the information on records, the company does not have any overdue outstanding to micro and small-scale industrial enterprises under MSMED Act, 2006.



(iii)(iii)(iii)(iii) Expenditures (remittance) in foreign currency: ` NIL



20)20)20)20) Recent Pronouncements:Recent Pronouncements:Recent Pronouncements:Recent Pronouncements:

The amendments are extensive and the Company has evaluated the same to give effect to them as required by law in the current year itself.

21)21)21)21) The Company is operating in only one Segment therefore the IND AS-108 "Operating Segment" is not applicable to the Company.

22)22)22)22)

23)23)23)23) As per IND AS-7 the Cash Flow Statement is enclosed herewith.

24)24)24)24) Previous year figures have been regrouped or rearranged wherever necessary.

25)25)25)25) Figures are rounded off to the nearest multiple of a rupee.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors As Per our report of even date attached

Statutory AuditorsStatutory AuditorsStatutory AuditorsStatutory Auditors

For SAP JAIN & ASSOCIATESFor SAP JAIN & ASSOCIATESFor SAP JAIN & ASSOCIATESFor SAP JAIN & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTSCHARTERED ACCOUNTANTSCHARTERED ACCOUNTANTSCHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

ICAI FRN 019356CICAI FRN 019356CICAI FRN 019356CICAI FRN 019356C

RAJ BANSALRAJ BANSALRAJ BANSALRAJ BANSAL VINOD DAGAVINOD DAGAVINOD DAGAVINOD DAGA

DIRECTORDIRECTORDIRECTORDIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERCHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERCHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICERCHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

(DIN: 00545292)(DIN: 00545292)(DIN: 00545292)(DIN: 00545292) (AEVPD3335A)(AEVPD3335A)(AEVPD3335A)(AEVPD3335A)

SHIV PRASAD AGARWALSHIV PRASAD AGARWALSHIV PRASAD AGARWALSHIV PRASAD AGARWAL VRISHTI KAUSHIKVRISHTI KAUSHIKVRISHTI KAUSHIKVRISHTI KAUSHIK

MANAGING DIRECTORMANAGING DIRECTORMANAGING DIRECTORMANAGING DIRECTOR (COMPANY SECRETARY)(COMPANY SECRETARY)(COMPANY SECRETARY)(COMPANY SECRETARY) CACACACA  NIKITA BILALA NIKITA BILALA NIKITA BILALA NIKITA BILALA

(DIN: 00545387)(DIN: 00545387)(DIN: 00545387)(DIN: 00545387) DOFPK5535ADOFPK5535ADOFPK5535ADOFPK5535A PARTNERPARTNERPARTNERPARTNER

PLACE: INDORE                                        PLACE: INDORE                                        PLACE: INDORE                                        PLACE: INDORE                                        ICAI MNO 429690ICAI MNO 429690ICAI MNO 429690ICAI MNO 429690

DATE: 30.06.2021                                                        DATE: 30.06.2021                                                        DATE: 30.06.2021                                                        DATE: 30.06.2021                                                        ICAI UDIN: 21429690AAAAAZ8968ICAI UDIN: 21429690AAAAAZ8968ICAI UDIN: 21429690AAAAAZ8968ICAI UDIN: 21429690AAAAAZ8968

Figures of Trade Receivables, Trade Payables, Loans & Advances and Borrowings subject to respective consent, confirmation, reconciliation and consequential adjustments, if any.

On 24th March, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through a notification, amended Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division I,

II and III of Schedule III and are applicable from 1st April, 2021.



NON CURRENT INVESTMENTSNON CURRENT INVESTMENTSNON CURRENT INVESTMENTSNON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

2020-212020-212020-212020-21 2019-202019-202019-202019-20

Non-Trade Investment (At Cost, fully paid unless otherwise stated)Non-Trade Investment (At Cost, fully paid unless otherwise stated)Non-Trade Investment (At Cost, fully paid unless otherwise stated)Non-Trade Investment (At Cost, fully paid unless otherwise stated)

Curr. Yr.Curr. Yr.Curr. Yr.Curr. Yr. Prev. Yr.Prev. Yr.Prev. Yr.Prev. Yr.

(a) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)(a) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)(a) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)(a) Investment in Equity Instruments (Quoted)

Reliance Industries Ltd. 214 214 10 428663 238343

Jai Prakash Associates Limited 21 21 10 144 22

Unitech Ltd. 300 300 2 498 375

429306429306429306429306 238740238740238740238740

(b) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)(b) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)(b) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)(b) Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted)

(i) Related Party

Atal Tea Co. (1943) Ltd. 100000 100000 10 1000000 1000000

Bijalimoni Tea & Finance Pvt. Ltd. 20000 20000 10 200000 200000

Candour Engineering Pvt. Ltd. 30500 30500 10 68625 68625

CB Impex Pvt. Ltd. 90000 90000 10 900000 900000

Chandan Tea Industries Pvt. Ltd. 700000 700000 10 6872173 6872173

Cooch Behar Agro Tea Estate Pvt. Ltd. 152500 152500 10 1525000 1525000

Eagle Vanijya Pvt. Ltd 50000 50000 10 116550 116550

Kolkata Wagons Pvt. Ltd. 1500 1500 10 150000 150000

Matidhar Tea & Finance Ltd. 20000 20000 10 200000 200000

Multipack Plastics Pvt. Ltd. 12000 12000 10 27000 27000

New Tea Properties Pvt. Ltd. 100000 100000 10 1000000 1000000

North Dinajpur Tea Agro Pvt. Ltd. 10000 10000 10 100000 100000

Nutan Finvest Pvt. Ltd. 86500 86500 10 131400 131400

Rajathan Housing & Investment Pvt. Ltd. 34770 34770 10 347700 347700

Rishab Finvest Pvt. Ltd. 35000 35000 10 350000 350000

Yuvaraj Finvest Pvt. Ltd. 30000 30000 10 300000 300000

(ii) Others(ii) Others(ii) Others(ii) Others

Ellenbarri Tea Co.Ltd. 200 200 10 12000 12000

Pioneer Finance & Marketing Ltd. 25000 25000 10 250000 250000

13550448135504481355044813550448 13550448135504481355044813550448

(c) Investment in Mutual Fund (Quoted)(c) Investment in Mutual Fund (Quoted)(c) Investment in Mutual Fund (Quoted)(c) Investment in Mutual Fund (Quoted)

Birla S/L Dividend Yeild [Growth] 691 691 10 55056 83336

HDFC Mid-Cap Opp. Growth [U-1407.401] 1407 1407 10 52965 54915

HDFC Mid-Cap Opportunity [U-1318.085] 1318 1318 10 49603 51430

ICICI Prudential Discovery [Growth] 0 0 10 0 0

IDFC Premier [Growth] 334 334 10 10000 24021

IDFC Small & Midcap [Growth] 591 591 10 10000 17712

Reliance Equity Opp. Growth [U-1220.283] 1220 1220 10 89878 78967

Reliance MF Vision [Growth Plan] 572 572 10 154946 219306

Religare Mid [Growth] 1980 1980 10 27822 77857

SBI MF [Infrastructure] 100000 100000 10 1000000 761000

Standard Chartered 10000 10000 10 100000 102300

1550270155027015502701550270 1470844147084414708441470844

(d) Investment in Non-convertible Debenture (Un-Quoted)(d) Investment in Non-convertible Debenture (Un-Quoted)(d) Investment in Non-convertible Debenture (Un-Quoted)(d) Investment in Non-convertible Debenture (Un-Quoted)

Tisco (NCD) 10 10 10 6000 6000

12.5% Vxl India Ltd. 20 20 50 10310 10310

16310163101631016310 16310163101631016310

Total  (a+b+c+d)Total  (a+b+c+d)Total  (a+b+c+d)Total  (a+b+c+d) 15546334155463341554633415546334 15276342152763421527634215276342

Aggregate cost of un-Quoted InvestmentsAggregate cost of un-Quoted InvestmentsAggregate cost of un-Quoted InvestmentsAggregate cost of un-Quoted Investments 13566758135667581356675813566758 13566758135667581356675813566758

Aggregate cost of Quoted InvestmentsAggregate cost of Quoted InvestmentsAggregate cost of Quoted InvestmentsAggregate cost of Quoted Investments 1591780159178015917801591780 1591780159178015917801591780

Aggregate Market Value of Quoted InvestmentsAggregate Market Value of Quoted InvestmentsAggregate Market Value of Quoted InvestmentsAggregate Market Value of Quoted Investments 1979576197957619795761979576 1709584170958417095841709584

NOTE-2NOTE-2NOTE-2NOTE-2

Name of the CompanyName of the CompanyName of the CompanyName of the Company

No. of SharesNo. of SharesNo. of SharesNo. of Shares Face Value/Fair Face Value/Fair Face Value/Fair Face Value/Fair 

value as on value as on value as on value as on 

datedatedatedate

ParticularsParticularsParticularsParticulars

SATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITEDSATYA SHYAM TRADING LIMITED
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